
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 

contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 

advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 

 
MARCH 23, 2015 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your agenda.  Also included are suggested 
or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 

GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 

 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 

 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 

 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 

 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 
 
 
 
 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

March 23, 2015 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Rev. David Huseltine – Big Beaver United Methodist Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Student Council of Barnard Elementary School 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificate of Appreciation to Troy Athens Student Council for Raising More Than 
$57,000 During Charity Week for Wish Upon a Teen (Presented by:  Mayor Dane 
Slater) 1 

C-2 Troy Community Coalition Year in Review (Presented by: Nancy Morrison, 
Executive Director for Troy Community Coalition) 1 

C-3 Presentation to Congratulate Rick Greenwell, MSED and Tim Davis, MSEC, 
Department of Public Works, on Taking First and Second Place in the Annual 
State Level Meter Madness Competition Sponsored by the American Water Works 
Association (Presented by: Tim Richnak, Public Works Director) 1 

C-4 Big Beaver Road – Big Beaver Zoning District (Presented by: Brent Savidant, 
Planning Director) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Carryover Items 2 



E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Liquor Violation Hearing – H-Mart Troy, LLC d/b/a H-Mart (Presented by: Julie Q. 
Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney) 2 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 

AND BUSINESSES: 3 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 4 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

H-1 No Postponed Items 4 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 4 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Building Code Board of Appeals 4 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Historic District 
Commission, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee 4 

I-3 No Request for Closed Session 8 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 8 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 8 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 8 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 8 

a) City Council Special Study Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 9, 2015 ..................... 8 

b) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 9, 2015 ........................................... 8 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 8 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 8 



a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Macomb County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles ............................................................... 8 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tree 
Maintenance Services .......................................................................................... 9 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mowing and 
Landscaping ......................................................................................................... 9 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 
Printing and Distributing of Water/Sewer Bills .................................................... 10 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders - Aggregates .......... 10 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Kronos Workforce Management Software . 10 

J-5 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2014 11 

J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Brook 
View Site Condominiums – Project No. 07-943.3 12 

J-7 Request for Authorization to Make an Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Property 
for the Expansion of Fire Station #4 – Sidwell #88-20-25-352-030 12 

J-8 Request for Acceptance of Four Warranty Deeds and Six Permanent Easements 
for Oak Forest Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-11-201-028 & 030 12 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 13 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time):  None Submitted 13 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 13 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 13 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 13 

N-1  No Council Referrals 13 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 13 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 13 



P. REPORTS: 13 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-January 14, 2015 ...... 13 

b) Traffic Committee-Final-January 21, 2015 ......................................................... 13 

c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-February 4, 2015.................................... 13 

d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-February 11, 2015 ..... 13 

e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-February 17, 2015 ............................................. 13 

f) Planning Commission-Final-February 24, 2015 .................................................. 13 

g) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-March 4, 2015 ........................................ 13 

P-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) Federal Aid Funding for Major Road Projects – Rochester, Barclay to Trinway 
(Troy) and Dequindre, Long Lake to Auburn (RCOC) ........................................ 13 

b) Troy Police Department 2014 Annual Report ..................................................... 13 

c) Sale of Surplus City Owned Parcels Update ...................................................... 13 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 14 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 14 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF 

THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM 

TROY BUSINESSES): 14 

R. CLOSED SESSION: 14 

R-1 No Closed Session Requested 14 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 15 

May 11, 2015 Adoption of the 2015-16 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget ... 15 

PROPOSED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS AND STUDY SESSIONS: 15 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

April 27, 2015 Budget Special Study Session ........................................................ 15 

April 29, 2015 Budget Special Study Session ........................................................ 15 

2015 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

March 23, 2015 Regular Meeting/Liquor Violation Hearing ................................... 15 



April 13, 2015 Regular Meeting ............................................................................. 15 

April 20, 2015 Regular Meeting ............................................................................. 15 

May 11, 2015 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 15 

May 18, 2015 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 15 

June 8, 2015 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 15 

Jun 22, 2015 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 15 

July 6, 2015 Regular Meeting ................................................................................ 15 

July 20, 2015 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 15 

August 10, 2015 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 15 

August 24, 2015 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 15 

September 14, 2015 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 15 

September 28, 2015 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 15 

October 12, 2015 Regular Meeting........................................................................ 15 

October 26, 2015 Regular Meeting........................................................................ 15 

November 9, 2015 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 15 

November 23, 2015 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 15 

December 7, 2015 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 15 

December 14, 2015 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 15 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Rev. David Huseltine – Big Beaver United Methodist Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Student Council of Barnard Elementary School 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Steve Gottlieb 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of ______________ at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of March 23, 2015, due to _________________. 
 
Yes:       
No:       

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Certificate of Appreciation to Troy Athens Student Council for Raising More Than 

$57,000 During Charity Week for Wish Upon a Teen (Presented by:  Mayor Dane 

Slater) 
 

C-2 Troy Community Coalition Year in Review (Presented by: Nancy Morrison, 

Executive Director for Troy Community Coalition)  
 

C-3 Presentation to Congratulate Rick Greenwell, MSED and Tim Davis, MSEC, 

Department of Public Works, on Taking First and Second Place in the Annual State 

Level Meter Madness Competition Sponsored by the American Water Works 

Association (Presented by: Tim Richnak, Public Works Director)  
 

C-4 Big Beaver Road – Big Beaver Zoning District (Presented by: Brent Savidant, 

Planning Director)  
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 2 - 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Liquor Violation Hearing – H-Mart Troy, LLC d/b/a H-Mart (Presented by: Julie Q. 

Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      

Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 

Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 

and the City, to review the following alleged violation: 

Name: H-Mart Troy, LLC, d/b/a H-Mart 

Address: 2963 E. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan 48083 

License No:  SDM (224253-2013) 

Violation:    SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on March 4, 2014 

WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 

infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 

presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Monday, March 23, 2015; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS BEEN PERSUADED that the alleged violation did occur, as set forth above; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations,  RECOMMENDS renewal 

of the off-premises liquor license for the 2015 license year, with the STIPULATION that all 

serving employees successfully complete a server training program, as defined under State 

Law (MCL 436.1906) within 90 days of today’s date, and that immediately upon completion, 

licensee shall submit proof of the successful completion of the server training program to the 

Troy Police Department; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if the licensee fails to comply with this condition within 120 

days, then licensee SHALL APPEAR before the Troy City Council after due notice, and that the 

licensee’s failure to comply with the server training condition could serve as a basis for the Troy 

City Council to take adverse action against the licensee’s liquor license;   

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 

Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

Yes:       
No:       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 3 - 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 

the Public and Visitors: 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if you 
do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with the 
majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to three 
(3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed 
to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent 
Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the Open 
Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy Residents and 
Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed 
to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as permitted under 
the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda from Troy 
Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

 All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes 
after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his or her 
name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If the 
speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

 Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to Public 
Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required to 
sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 4 - 

There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, Troy 
Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 
Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 
Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.  
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – None 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments:  None 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Historic District 

Commission, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 5 - 

 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 

Dziurman Theodore 3/8/2014 4/30/2015 BCBA exp 1/1/2015 

Kerwin Mary 1/16/2017 4/30/2017  

Kornacki Rosemary 12/12/2015 4/30/2017  

Swartz Robert D. 7/25/2013 4/30/2017  

Vacancy   4/30/2016 Bruce Wilberding’s unexpired. 

Vassallo Joseph J. 12/6/2013 4/30/2015  
 

Nominations to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2016  

 
Term currently held by: Vacancy – Bruce Wilberding’s 

unexpired term (resigned 4/11/2014) 

Interested Applicants: 
No applicants on file. 

 
Yes:  
No:  
 

b) City Council Nominations:  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 2 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 6 - 

Chambers Barbara 12/20/2015 3/1/2017  

Knight Barbara 1/15/2016 3/1/2015 EDC exp 4/30/2015  

McCown Paul 7/10/2015 3/1/2017 ZBA (Alt) exp 1/31/2018 

McGee Timothy 8/13/2014 5/15/2015  

Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 3/1/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/2015; Traffic 
Comm. exp 1/31/2018 

Schuchter Doris 11/22/2013 5/15/2015 Historical Society Recommendation 

Voigt W. Kent 1/23/2015 3/1/2016  
 

 

Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 

Term Expires:  3/01/2018  

 Term currently held by: Barbara Knight 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Res Expire Notes  

Adams John 12/19/2016  

Talarico Paula 1/8/2017  
 

 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes  

Comiskey Ann 3/18/2016 1/31/2018  

Ehlert Max 11/5/2016 1/31/2018  

Godlewski W. Stan 12/14/2012 1/31/2017  

Gorcyca David 12/6/2015 1/31/2017  

Hall Patrick 12/12/2014 1/31/2016  

Huber Robert 3/1/2015 7/31/2015 STUDENT 

Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 1/31/2016  

Oberski Jeff   Police Dept. 

Payne Timothy 2/8/2014 1/31/2018  

Vacancy   7/31/2015 STUDENT 
 

 

Nomination to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 7 - 

 

Term Expires:  7/31/2015  

 Term currently held by: Vacancy (Student) 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name 
App Resume 

Expire Notes  

Bluhm David 10/21/2015 STUDENT currently serving on P&R Board 

Boudon Frank 5/15/2015 STUDENT currently serving on Planning Comm. 
 

 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 

Brandstetter Tim 10/17/2016 1/31/2018  

Easterbrook David 12/2/2015 1/31/2016 Stevan Popovic's unexpired term 

Huotari William  12/31/2099 Ex-Officio Member 

Kilmer Richard 12/12/2015 1/31/2017  

Mayer Gary  12/31/2099 Ex-Officio Member 

Nelson William  12/31/2099 Ex-Officio Member 

Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 1/31/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/2015; 

Vacancy   1/31/2016 O. Apahidean resigned 2/13/15  

Wilsher Cynthia 10/9/2016 1/31/2018  

Ziegenfelder Peter 12/9/2015 1/31/2017  
 

 

Nominations to theTraffic Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  1/31/2016  

 Term currently held by: O. Apahidean resigned 2/13/2015 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Notes 1 

Bluhm David 10/21/2015 STUDENT 

Huber R. Mitch 8/26/2016 STUDENT 
 

 
Yes:       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 8 - 

No:       
 

I-3 No Request for Closed Session  

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 

presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a) City Council Special Study Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 9, 2015 

b) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 9, 2015  
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Macomb County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase four (4) 2015 
Ford Interceptor and two (2) 2015 Ford Edge vehicles, for the Police Department from the low 
total bidder, Signature Ford Lincoln of Owosso, MI, as per the Macomb County Cooperative 
Bid, Contract ID numbers 71-15, P.1 b and 71-15 A.9.a.for an estimated total cost of 
$154,648.00. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 9 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tree Maintenance 

Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 
WHEREAS, On June 7, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a three-year contract to provide tree 
maintenance services with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low total bidder, 
J. H. Hart Urban Forestry of Sterling Heights, MI (Resolution #2010-06-131-I-4a); and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council awarded a one-year option to renew plus an additional one-year 
extension detailed in the value added section of the bid tabulation with an escalator factor of 
2.5% (Resolution #2013-04-075-J-4g). 
 
WHEREAS, The City has conducted a market survey and determined no benefit would be 
derived from soliciting additional bids as J.H. Hart’s labor rates are comparable to others and 
their equipment costs are the lowest in the industry; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in 
the City’s best interest to exercise the option to renew the contract with J. H. Urban Forestry of 
Sterling Heights, MI, to provide one-year requirements of tree maintenance services under the 
same contract prices, terms, and conditions for an estimated total cost of $276,750 but not to 
exceed budgetary limitations for the extension, contract to expire June 30, 2016. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mowing and 

Landscaping 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 
WHEREAS, On March 1, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a three-year contract to provide 
mowing and landscape services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low 
bidder, Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc. of Rochester Hills, MI (Resolution #2010-03-071-I-
4b); and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy determines that Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc. meets all the 
contract terms and conditions in accordance with ITB-COT10-04; 
 
WHEREAS, The awarded contractor has agreed to exercise a third two-year option to renew 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
WHEREAS, The Purchasing Department has conducted a market survey and determined it is in 
the City’s best interest to renew the contract; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in 
the City’s best interest to exercise the option to renew the contract with Green Meadows 
Lawnscape of Rochester Hills, MI, to provide two-year requirements for mowing and landscape 
services to all municipal property under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions; 
contract expiring December 31, 2016. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 10 - 

 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing 

and Distributing of Water/Sewer Bills 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That a one (1) year contract to provide Laser Printing and Distribution of the City of 
Troy Water and Sewer Bills, with an option to renew for three (3) additional years is hereby 

AWARDED to the low bidder meeting specifications; Lasercom LLC of Troy, MI for an estimated 
total cost of $12,178.22 per year, plus the actual cost of first class postage, at unit prices 

contained in the bid tabulation opened March 12, 2015, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting expiring April 30, 2019.  
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders - Aggregates 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one (1) year contracts to provide 
aggregates with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the following low bidders;  
 
Company     Items           Estimated Total Cost 

Richmond Transport Inc., Lenox, MI  1, 6, 9      $10,425.00 
Osburn Industries Inc., Taylor, MI  7     $15,500.00 
Edward C. Levy Co. Detroit, MI   3, 4, 8        $9,264.00 
Tri-City Aggregates, Inc., Holly, MI  2,5      $27,500.00 
Estimated Total Cost        $62,689.00 
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That all aggregates to be purchased on as needed basis; at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 12, 2015, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring April 30, 2017. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT UPON the contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Kronos Workforce Management Software 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 
WHEREAS, Implementing workforce management software would utilize technology to improve 
efficiencies and save approximately 3,403 hours of staff effort spread across all departments, 
allowing that time to be directed towards the City’s strategy to build and maintain strong, 
productive service levels; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, An integrated system would eliminate the need for paper timecards because  
Kronos offers time clocks, phone apps and a web interface for employees and supervisors to 
update schedules, offer availability, accept open assignments, complete timecards, request 
time off, approve time, and provide access to all of this information; and 
 
WHEREAS, Other benefits that would result from implementing Kronos includes improved 
payroll and accounting processes and accuracy; tools for enhanced tracking; consistent rules 
application mitigating compliance risk; and improved grant management. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS three 
contracts for the implementation of Kronos workforce management software as follows: 
 

1) To Kronos for Workforce Central on the Oakland County G2G Cooperative Contract.  
Onetime costs include implementation and training of approximately $48,100 and 
hardware costs for up to 13 time clocks of approximately $53,577. Ongoing annual costs 
will be approximately $47,868 for use of the Workforce Central modules.  This amount 
will vary depending on the number of active employees in the system each month and 
licenses needed.  Time clock maintenance will be approximately $5,265 per year. 
 

2) To Kronos for Telestaff on the US Communities Cooperative Purchasing Contract.  
Onetime costs for the software, implementation and training are approximately $68,720 
with annual recurring maintenance costs of approximately $5,496.  Increases in 
maintenance shall be no more than 4% per year.  Additional licensing and maintenance 
may be required as staff utilizing Telestaff may change over time. 
 

3) To Voxeo to support automated communications integrated with Telestaff.  There is a 
one-time set up fee of $2,500 plus a minimum monthly commitment of $150 which would 
provide 1,150 minutes of service.  The monthly cost could vary should the city require 
additional minutes at $0.13 per minute. 
 

4) Approximate total costs:  Capital of $172,897 and annual operating of $60,429 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the vendors’ submission 
of properly executed contract documents and insurance certificates. 
 

J-5 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2014 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the state of Michigan for the 
purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, Beachview Court, Sachin Way, Evaline Drive, Tanner Court, Poppleton Court, and 
Huron Court are located within the City of Troy; right of way is under the control of the City of 
Troy; said streets are public streets and are for public street purposes and were open to the 
public prior to December 31, 2014; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 12 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the following 
platted and non-platted streets: Beachview Court, Sachin Way, Evaline Drive, Tanner Court, 
Poppleton Court, and Huron Court into the City of Troy local street system. 
 

J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Brook 

View Site Condominiums – Project No. 07-943.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 
RESOLVED, that the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Brooke View Development, Inc, is hereby 

APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water main, detention, paving, 
sidewalks, soil erosion and landscaping on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the 

Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-7 Request for Authorization to Make an Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Property 

for the Expansion of Fire Station #4 – Sidwell #88-20-25-352-030 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 
WHEREAS, in order to proceed with the design and construction of a new Fire Station #4, 
located on Maple Road in Section 25, it is necessary for the City of Troy to acquire the property 
located at 2121 East Maple, from Nisreen Albedry and Abbas Albedry, owners of the property 
having Sidwell #88-20-25-352-030; 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Conditioned Offer to purchase the 
property located at 2121 East Maple Road with Sidwell #88-20-25-352-030 in the amount of 
$175,000.00, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Engineering Department is hereby AUTHORIZED to 
expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to the agreement, and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 

Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-8 Request for Acceptance of Four Warranty Deeds and Six Permanent Easements 

for Oak Forest Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-11-201-028 & 030 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2015-03-      
 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby ACCEPTS four warranty deeds for right-of-way and 
detention purposes, and six permanent easements for storm sewers and surface drainage, 
public utilities, sanitary sewers, clear vision, landscape and non-access greenbelt, and an entry 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 13 - 

marker from Oak Forest, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-11-201-028 & 030, 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the easements 
and warranty deeds with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, copies of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  None Submitted 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

N-1  No Council Referrals  

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 

P. REPORTS: 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-January 14, 2015 
b) Traffic Committee-Final-January 21, 2015 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-February 4, 2015 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-February 11, 2015 
e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-February 17, 2015 
f) Planning Commission-Final-February 24, 2015 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-March 4, 2015 
 

P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Federal Aid Funding for Major Road Projects – Rochester, Barclay to Trinway (Troy) and 

Dequindre, Long Lake to Auburn (RCOC)  
b) Troy Police Department 2014 Annual Report  
c) Sale of Surplus City Owned Parcels Update 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 14 - 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 
 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 23, 2015 

 

- 15 - 

 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
May 11, 2015 ......................... Adoption of the 2015-16 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget 
 

 
 

PROPOSED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS AND STUDY SESSIONS: 
 

 
 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
April 27, 2015 .............................................................................. Budget Special Study Session 

April 29, 2015 .............................................................................. Budget Special Study Session 
 
 
 

2015 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
March 23, 2015 ......................................................... Regular Meeting/Liquor Violation Hearing 

April 13, 2015 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

April 20, 2015 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

May 11, 2015 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

May 18, 2015 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

June 8, 2015 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Jun 22, 2015 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

July 6, 2015 ...................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

July 20, 2015 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

August 10, 2015 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
August 24, 2015 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

September 14, 2015 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

September 28, 2015 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

October 12, 2015 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

October 26, 2015 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

November 9, 2015 ............................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

November 23, 2015 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

December 7, 2015 ............................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2015 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
 
Date: March 19, 2015 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: BIG BEAVER ROAD – BB (Big Beaver) Zoning District 
 
The City of Troy is in the process of updating the City of Troy Master Plan. As part of this effort, the 
Planning Commission discussed recent development activity along Big Beaver Road as it relates to 
the Big Beaver Corridor Plan. That document - which established the overall vision for Big Beaver 
Road in 2006 - called for additional height, density and mixed use in specified areas along the 
corridor. With the exception of the DMC Children’s Hospital of Michigan, all recent development 
along Big Beaver has been only one story in height. The question asked by Planning Commission 
was: “Why are we not seeing the intensity of development envisioned and allowed along Big Beaver 
Road?”  
 
At the request of the Planning Commission, City Staff took the important first step of discussing this 
idea with members of the development and financial community. City staff met a group of lenders, 
developers and designers on March 19, 2015 to discuss this matter. The following is the list of 
attendees: 
 
 City of Troy Attendees 
 

 Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
 Richard Carlisle, Planning Consultant 
 Ben Carlisle, Planning Consultant 
 Maggie Hughes, Management Assistant 

 
 Development Community Attendees 
 

 Tim Kalil, Senior Vice President, Commercial Real Estate, Flagstar Bank 
 Darlene Nowak-Baker, Managing Director, Commercial Real Estate-Group Manager, 

Talmer Bank and Trust 
 Matt Farrell, Principal, CORE Partners 
 Bob Waun, Vice President/Business Development, CORE Partners 
 J. C. Cataldo, RePlace (Developer) 
 Bill Hartman, Architect, Gensler 

dicksona
Text Box
C-04



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
 
Two important questions asked during the discussion were: 
 

 Why are we not achieving the Big Beaver Corridor Study goals of increased height, density 
and mixed use? 

 What else can the City do to assist in achieving these goals? 
 
These general questions guided the conversation. The following is a list of salient points from the 
discussion: 
 

 Identify specific areas along Big Beaver to focus efforts 
 Identify City strengths and establish City brand 
 Consider some form of transit or shuttle along Big Beaver Road  
 Recognize increase in construction costs as building height increases (+/-5 stories) 
 Banks have difficulty financing mixed use projects 
 Identify and recruit a “big fish” mixed use developer anchor; “small fish” will follow 
 Identify City incentives to encourage mixed use: (1) Infrastructure; (2) Land; (3) Demolition 

 
This information will be presented to the Planning Commission at an upcoming meeting. City 
Management suggests a joint meeting of City Council and Planning Commission to discuss this 
matter, following the City Budget update process. 
 
 
G:\Big Beaver Zoning Discussion\CC Memo 2015 03 23.doc 



dicksona
Text Box
E-01































CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, March 9, 2015, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Steve Gottlieb 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Potential Library Millage Renewal Question  
 
Mayor Slater called the meeting to order and reminded the audience that this is only the first of 
the study sessions that will be called on the topic of the Library millage. 
 
City Manager Kischnick introduced the topic and commented that the Library is one part of the 
discussion that began with the y Financial Ideas Team (FIT) discussions.  
 
Cathy Russ, Library Director, discussed the topic utilizing a presentation that is available on the 
City of Troy website. 
 
Aileen Dickson, City Clerk, discussed the timeline for a ballot question to be placed on the 
November, 2015, ballot. 
 
Ms. Russ continued the presentation discussion. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Campbell asked if there is a plan to fix the water issues in the basement of the 
Library. Ms. Russ answered that the basement is three-quarters of the way repaired, so the 
funds are not included in this discussion for future budgets. 
 
Council Member Henderson asked Ms. Russ to discuss the costs associated with e-books 
versus hardcopy books. Ms. Russ explained that there is a substantial difference in costs 
between e-books, which are about $89 per copy, and hardcopies, which are about $15 per 
copy. She continued that e-books are more popular and require repurchase after a set number 
of checkouts, so costs are high. She said these costs make up the library materials budget. Ms. 
Russ explained that e-books do not incur library fines because on the due date, they are 
removed from the users’ devices automatically.  
 
Council Member Hodorek asked Ms. Russ to discuss the sustainability of staff at Troy Public 
Library versus staffing at other libraries. Ms. Russ commented that compared to other libraries, 
it is difficult to accurately compare because of different staffing needs for each community and 

dicksona
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 
 

- 2 - 

each library. She said that at Troy Public Library, they have mostly supervisors as full-time staff, 
and it is difficult to groom part-time staff members as a part of succession planning due to the 
workload on the part-time staff members. She commented that Troy Public Library provides 
great training and experience to part-time employees, but then those employees have an easier 
time finding full-time employment elsewhere. Mr. Kischnick commented that the Troy Library 
staff is outstanding; however, the economic environment continues to be a struggle for all 
municipal departments and finding the balance is crucial. Mayor Slater asked if the staffing 
levels for a 6-day library working today and projecting out 8 years, will the funding still be 
sufficient. Ms. Russ answered that the funding currently is adequate. She said she has part-
time positions that she would like to see made full-time, but the Library is operating well at the 
present time even if it is never fully staffed. Council Member Tietz commented that the number 
of library users seems to be continually increasing every year, and it would be difficult to 
maintain the current staff level with increased users. Ms. Russ said that keeping the balance is 
very important, and currently that does not involve outreach in the community, but is focused 
more on maintaining current services. 
 
Council Member Pennington asked if the current 64% of households who hold library cards is 
who actually uses the library. Philip Kwik, Assistant Library Director, explained that cardholders 
who have not used their cards in three years are deleted from the system. He said that some 
cardholders don’t actually check out materials but use materials at the Library, databases or 
attend programs. 
 
Mayor Slater asked if the budget would have the funding available to finance the Library for 6 
days from the General Fund. Mr. Kischnick answered that there are a few concepts to answer 
that question. First, the FIT Team provided data that shows that there is not money in the 
General Fund to fund the Library completely. He said that the two options discussed in the 
presentation are real options that will be sustainable. He said that the General Fund has many 
other pressures such as roads, and the FIT Team concurred that it is not possible to fund the 
Library out of the General Fund.  
 
Mayor Slater said that now 5 years later we are making the same decision that we made 5 
years ago, and it was a good decision then. He would like to see if there is another scenario 
that would provide Friday service. Ms. Russ said the scenario shown in the presentation would 
work today. 
 
Council Member Tietz referenced the handout and asked if that was keeping staff status quo at 
a 6-day library. Ms. Russ answered that the handout references a 6-day library at status quo 
staffing. 
 
Council Member Henderson asked what if the millage renewal was on the November ballot and 
it failed. Mr. Kischnick answered that there would be a deficit that could only be covered by 
General Fund Balance, but covering ongoing expenses is against the Fund Balance policy. 
 
Mayor Slater asked if Ms. Russ receives a lot of questions about Friday service. Ms. Russ said 
that she receives one or two emails a quarter asking for Friday service. Council Member 
Henderson asked if other libraries are outside of their cities’ budgets. Ms. Russ answered that 
about half the libraries shown in the presentation are city departments. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 
 

- 3 - 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 
Jim Werpetinski- Commented that he was on the FIT Team and he recalled it being 

unanimous to maintain a 6-day library. 
 
Jack Cushing- Commented that the Troy Public Library is a wonderful place to work but he 

has heard of many part-time employees leaving for higher paying jobs and 
we need the millage. 

 
Edna Abrahim- Commented on the millage cap and appreciates the discussion about the 

Library millage. 
 
 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 6:56 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Dickson, CMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 

 

- 1 - 

Council Member Pennington performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, March 9, 2015, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Steve Gottlieb 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Award of Excellence for 2014 Troy Roads Rock from the Michigan Concrete 

Association (Presented by:  Kerry Sutton, Director of Engineering for Southeast 

Michigan) 
 

C-2 Congressman Dave Trott - Update 
 

C-3 Delinquent Property Tax Payment Deadline Information (Presented by:  Andrew E. 

Meisner, Oakland County Treasurer) 
 

C-4 Troy Youth Assistance – Parenting Month (Presented by:  Robin Beltramini, Troy 

Youth Assistance) 
 

C-5 Troy’s 60th Anniversary – 1955-2015 (Presented by:  Cindy Stewart, Community 

Affairs Director, and Loraine Campbell, Director of the Troy Historic Village) 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

Jim Werpetinski Spoke about Item C-5 and applauded Recreation staff on the successful 
Community Center 13th Birthday Celebration. 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 

 

- 2 - 

James Savage Spoke about Item C-5 and the upcoming Shall We Dance Community Dinner 
Dance on April 9th at the Community Center. 

 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Building Code Board of Appeals 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2015-03-036 
Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by Hodorek  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the appointment of the following 
person to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 

5 Regular Members:  Three (3) Residents with background, training or experience in 
construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or civil 

engineer of architectural engineering experience;  Two (2) by Ordinance - City 
Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 

 

 
 

Required by Chapter 79: Mike Morris     (Oakland County Health Dept. Rep.) 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Historic District 

Commission, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 

 

- 3 - 

City Council took no action on this item. 
 

b) City Council Nominations:  
 
City Council took no action on this item. 
 

I-3 Request for Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2015-03-037 
Moved by Gottlieb  
Seconded by Henderson  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) – Pending Litigation – (Todd Michael v City of Troy) and MCL 15.268 (h) (MCL 
15.243(g)). 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-4 Roads Presentation (Introduced by:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager) 
 

I-5 2015 Troy Concrete Pavement Replacement Program and Budget Amendment 

(Introduced by:  Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services) 
 
Resolution #2015-03-038 
Moved by Pennington  
Seconded by Hodorek  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of City funds for concrete 
pavement replacement on roads under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland 
County. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the transfer of 
$2,000,000 from the General Fund Fund Balance to the Capital Projects Fund for Major Roads 
for concrete pavement replacement on Big Beaver, John R and Dequindre Roads. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a 2014-15 budget 
amendment of $1,000,000 for transfers from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund for 
Major Roads and that City Management will provide for a $1,000,000 transfer from the General 
Fund to the Capital Projects Fund for Major Roads in the 2015-16 budget. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 

 

- 4 - 

 

I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Concrete Slab 

Replacement Program (Introduced by:  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager) 
 
Resolution #2015-03-039 
Moved by Gottlieb  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
WHEREAS, On April 14, 2014, Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract to provide 
concrete slab replacement services with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the 
low total bidder, DiLisio Contracting, Inc. of Clinton Township, MI (Resolution #2014-04-063-J-
4a); and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has determined that DiLisio Contracting, Inc. meets all the terms 
and conditions of the original bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, DiLisio Contracting, Inc. has agreed to exercise a one-year option to renew with 
price escalations as detailed in the letter sent February 5, 2015. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the 

City’s best interest to EXERCISE the option to renew the contract with DiLisio Contracting, Inc. 
of Clinton Township, MI to provide concrete slab replacement under the same contract terms, 
and conditions and pricing escalation as detailed in the letter sent from DiLisio Contracting, Inc. 

dated February 5, 2015, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with an estimated cost of $4,721,565.00 not to exceed budgetary limitations, contract 
to expire June 30, 2016. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

The Meeting RECESSED at 8:42 PM. 
 

The Meeting RECONVENED at 8:50 PM. 
 

I-7 Revisions to 2014-2015 City Council Rules of Procedure (Introduced by:  Aileen 

Dickson, City Clerk) 
 
Resolution #2015-03-040 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Hodorek  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the revisions to the 2014-2015 City 
Council Rules of Procedure as presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 

 

- 5 - 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-8 2015 Oakland County Dog Licenses (Introduced by:  Aileen Dickson, City Clerk) 
 

I-9 Proposed Amended Agreement with Somerset Collection (Introduced by:  Gary 

Mayer, Chief of Police) 
 
Resolution #2015-03-041 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Campbell  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement Between the City Of 
Troy and Somerset Collection for Assignment of Police Officer Position and Reimbursement to 

the City of Troy for Costs, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the 
documents on behalf of the City of Troy.  A copy of the executed Agreement shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-10 Camp Ticonderoga Capital Projects Extension Request (Introduced by:  Elaine Bo, 

Recreation Director) 
 
Resolution #2015-03-042 
Moved by Gottlieb  
Seconded by Henderson  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES extending the capital project deadline 
for Gallatin, Inc., without a rent increase, as specified in the Lease Amendment, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-11 2015-2016 Strategies (Introduced by:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager) 
 
Resolution #2015-03-043 
Moved by Hodorek  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council and City Administration identified top priorities for 
2015/2016 on February 5th and 6th at the Council/Staff Retreat; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 

 

- 6 - 

 
WHEREAS, City Management took those identified priorities and created Top 10 Strategies for 
2015/2016.  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and ADOPTS the Top 10 
2015/2016 Strategies.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2015-03-044 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Campbell  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2015-03-044-J-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – February 23, 2015 
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Printing and Distributing of 2015 and 2016 Summer and Winter Tax Bills 
 
Resolution #2015-03-044-J-4a 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 

 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a two (2) year contract with the option to 
renew upon mutual consent of both parties at the same prices, terms and conditions for three 
(3) additional years to provide Printing and Distribution of Troy Summer and Winter Tax Bills to 
LaserCom, LLC of Troy, MI; for an estimated annual cost of $6,596.00 per year and a total cost 
of $32,980.00, plus the actual cost of first class postage; not to exceed annual budgetary 
limitations at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 19, 2015; a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring 
December 31, 2019. 
 

Annual Cost $6,596.00 

Total 2-Years $13,192.00 

Total 3-Year 
Renewal $19,788.00 

Contract Total $32,980.00 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.  
 

J-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Brooke View 

Development, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-01-476-063 
 
Resolution #2015-03-044-J-5 
 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby ACCEPTS a permanent easement for storm sewer and 
surface drainage from Brooke View Development, Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-01-476-063. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
permanent easement with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  None Submitted 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

Roianna Albedry (Resident) Spoke on behalf of the Teen Advisory Board in support of 
increasing the funding for the Troy Public Library. 

Eva Lisowski (Resident) Spoke on behalf of the Teen Advisory Board in support of 
increasing the funding for the Troy Public Library. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 

 

- 8 - 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals  

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
Council Member Gottlieb thanked the students for having the courage to share their thoughts 
about the Troy Public Library. 
 
The Mayor announced the State of the City Address to be held on Wednesday, March 25, 2015 
at the Somerset Inn.  Tickets cost $20.00 per person and includes lunch beginning at 11:00 
AM.  The State of the City Address will begin at 12:30 PM. 

O. REPORTS: 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Retiree Healthcare Benefit & Trust Board of Trustees-Final – November 12, 2014 
b) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final – January 5, 2015 
c) Planning Commission-Final – February 10, 2015  
 

O-2 Department Reports:   
a) Evergreen Farmington Sewage Disposal System – Contracts for Improvements to Meet 

the Goals of the Long-Term Corrective Action Plan (LTCAP) 
b) Building Department Activity Report – February, 2015 
c) Report on the New City Logo Process  
d) Unsolicited Newspaper Delivery 
 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Chief Mayer from Anonymous Regarding No Knock Ordinance 
b) To Troy Firefighters from Danny 
 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 

P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:05 PM. 
 

The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:15 PM 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft March 9, 2015 

 

- 9 - 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1 Closed Session  

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:35 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Dickson, CMC 
City Clerk 

 
 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 10, 2015 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance    

 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 

– Fleet Vehicles 
 

History 

 The six (6) vehicles being purchased are replacement vehicles for the Police Department.  

 The six (6) obsolete vehicles will be removed from service and sold at auction with estimated proceeds of 
$25,500.00.  

 This purchase replaces existing vehicles and does not increase the size of the existing Department of 
Public Works motor pool fleet. 

 
Purchasing 

 Signature Ford Lincoln is the low total bidder in the Macomb County Cooperative Bid. The Macomb 
County Contract ID numbers 71-15, P.1 b and 71-15 A.9.a.   

 The contract pricing is valid thru 2015 model year Ford vehicles.   

 On February 10, 2014 City Council authorized departments to utilize sites such as GovDeals.com to 
dispose of City owned surplus items.  (Resolution# 2014-02-017-J-4a)  Therefore, note that the City will 
utilize and market the six (6) obsolete vehicles on GovDeals.com site for optimal trade-in value. 

 
Financial 
Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account.       

  
       Signature Ford Lincoln       Budget      Unit Cost          Estimated Total 
    (4) Ford Interceptor - Police Patrol - AWD  $104,000.00       $25,976.00  $103,904.00 
    (2) Ford Edge - Police – FWD              $  52,000.00        $25,372.00             $  50,744.00 
    (6)                    $156,000.00               $154,648.00 
 

Recommendation 
City management requests authorization to purchase four (4) 2015 Ford Interceptor and two (2) 2015 Ford Edge 
vehicles, for the Police Department from Signature Ford Lincoln of Owosso, MI, as per the Macomb County 
Cooperative Bid Contract ID numbers 71-15, P.1 and 71-15 A.9.a for an estimated total cost of $154,648.00.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 14-15 Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 Macomb_Vehicles_PD .doc 

dicksona
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
         Ford - Police Interceptor (4)                    Ford – Edge (2) 



 

 

  
Page 1 

 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 16, 2015 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager 
    
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tree Maintenance 

Services 
 

History 

 Three-year requirements of Tree Maintenance Services with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year was competitively bid and opened on April 29, 2010, in accordance with City 
Charter and Code.   

 The scope of work includes all labor, tools, equipment, and transportation for tree maintenance 
services.  

 These services include preventative tree trimming maintenance, tree removal, storm damage 
removal, and tree stump removal.  

 These tasks enable the City of Troy to be eligible to be recognized as a Tree City USA.  

 On June 7, 2010, Troy City Council approved the three-year contract with an option to renew 
for one (1) additional year to the low total bidder, J. H. Hart Urban Forestry of Sterling Heights, 
MI (Resolution # 2010-06-131-I-4a) that also included a value added service of an additional 
one (1) year extension that included a 2.5% escalator, which was resolved on April 8, 2013. 
(Resolution #2013-04-075-J-4g). 

 J. H. Hart Urban Forestry has agrees to extend the current pricing for an additional year. 
 
Purchasing 
Purchasing has conducted a market survey and determined the City would not benefit from soliciting 
new bids for tree maintenance services.  

 
Financial 
Funds are available in the Parks Division and Streets Division operating budgets. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one (1) additional year with J. H. 
Hart Urban Forestry of Sterling Heights, MI for tree maintenance services at unit prices detailed on 
the bid tabulation opened April 29, 2010, for an estimated total cost of $276,750, contract to expire 
June 30, 2016. 

dicksona
Text Box
J-04b



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Date:  March 17, 2015 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager 
    
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mowing and Landscape 

Services 
 

History 

 Three-year requirements of Mowing and Landscape Services with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years was competitively bid and opened on March 1, 2010, in accordance with City 
Charter and Code.   

 The scope of work includes all labor, tools, equipment, chemicals, transportation, and landscape 
maintenance services including mowing for municipal grounds. 

 On March 15, 2010, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to provide Mowing and 
Landscape Services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low bidder, Green 
Meadows Lawnscape Inc of Rochester Hills, MI (Resolution # 2010-03-071-I-4b).   

 Green Meadows will mow all locations throughout the growing season totaling 550 acres. These 
locations include Parks, Cemeteries, Detention/Retention Ponds, Fire Stations, City owned vacant 
property, and other Municipal Facilities.   

 Note that this mowing contract excludes the DDA and the Civic Center Campus, which is held by 
separate contractor. 

 
Purchasing 

 Green Meadows Lawnscape, Inc. has met all contract terms and conditions in accordance with bid 
specifications ITB-COT 10-04.  

 Green Meadows Lawnscape has expressed interest in renewing its current contract for two (2) 
additional years for the third time under the same pricing, terms, and conditions as the original bid 
pricing from 2010.  

 The two-year contract extension would expire December 31, 2016. 

 Based on the current market survey it is in the City’s best interest to renew this contract. 
 
Financial 
Funds are available through the Public Works, Fire Station, Museum, and Transit Center operating 
budgets. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew for two additional years with, Green 
Meadows Lawnscape Inc of Rochester Hills, MI to provide mowing and landscape services of all 
municipal property at unit prices detailed in the bid tabulation opened March 1, 2010 for an estimated 
annual cost of $450,000.00 on an as needed basis, not to exceed budgetary limitations; contract to expire 
December 31, 2016. 

dicksona
Text Box
J-04c



 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Date:  March 19, 2015 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Richard Shepler, Superintendent of Water & Sewer 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Low Bidder Meeting Specifications– Printing and Distribution 

of Water/Sewer Bills 
 
History 

 The Water and Sewer Division is responsible for the printing and distribution of water and sewer bills on 
a monthly basis. 

 The current contract expires April 30, 2015. 
 
Purchasing 
On March 12, 2015, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for water and sewer bill 
printing and distribution with an option to renew for three (3) additional years.  The bid was posted on the Michigan 
Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info and the bid was also sent to the Troy Chamber 
of Commerce.  Six (6) bid responses were received.  One (1) bid was rejected because the vendor failed to submit 
the required bid deposit as specified in the request.  Below is a detailed summary of potential vendors for the bid 
opportunity: 
 

Companies notified via MITN 140 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 9 

Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 9 

Troy Companies notified Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  34 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 2 

 
 
After reviewing the bid responses, Lasercom LLC of Troy, Michigan was the low bidder meeting specifications 
and is being recommended to provide printing and distribution services for water and sewer bills with the option 
to renew for three (3) additional years. 
 
Financial 
Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Public Works Water and Sewer Division. 
 
Recommendation 
City Management recommends awarding a one (1) year contract with the option to renew for three (3) additional 
years for Water/Sewer Bill Printing and Distribution services to Lasercom LLC of Troy, MI at unit prices as 
detailed in the bid tabulation opened March 12, 2015, for an estimated annual cost of $12,178.22. The award is 
contingent upon the contractor’s submission of properly executed bid documents including insurance certificates, 
and all other specified requirements.  

 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 
solicitations or access any bid information. 

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/
dicksona
Text Box
J-04d



 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 Date:  March 17, 2015 

 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager 
   
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Aggregates 
 

 
History 

 Aggregate material is used by the Department of Public Works to maintain City infrastructure 
including underground systems. 

 These systems require specific materials to meet different compaction ratings. 

 The type of project or maintenance will dictate what type of aggregate is required. 

 Aggregates are purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year to meet these demands and 
to replenish an inventory located at the Public Works yard.  

 The current contract expires April 30, 2015. 
 
 
Purchasing 
On March 12, 2015 a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter/Code for one (1) year 
requirements of aggregates with an option to renew for one (1) additional year.  The bid was posted on the 
Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN); www.mitn.info. 117 vendors were notified via the MITN 
website.  Four (4) bid responses were received.  Below is a detailed summary of potential vendors for the 
bid opportunity:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

After reviewing the bid proposals, it is being recommended to award contracts to the following four (4) low 
bidders at the unit prices as detailed below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Companies notified via MITN 117 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 1 

Troy Companies notified - Active email Notification 1 

Troy Companies - Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  14 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 1 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual 
dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant 
access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 

http://www.mitn.info/
dicksona
Text Box
J-04e



 

 

2 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

 
 
Purchasing (Continued): 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Financial 
Funds are available through the Public Works operating budgets for the Streets and Water Divisions. 
 
Recommendation 
City Management recommends awarding one (1) year contracts with the option to renew for one (1) 
additional year to the following low bidders: 
 Company     Items         Estimated Total Cost 

Richmond Transport Inc., Lenox, MI   1, 6, 9       $10,425.00 
Osburn Industries Inc., Taylor, MI   7       $15,500.00 
Edward C. Levy Co. Detroit, MI    3, 4, 8         $9,264.00 
Tri-City Aggregates, Inc., Holly, MI   2, 5       $27,500.00 
Estimated Total Cost          $62,689.00 
 

Aggregates are to be purchased as specified on as needed basis and as per unit bid prices listed in the 
attached bid tabulation opened March 12, 2015 on as needed basis; contract to expire April 30, 2017. 
 
 
 

Item Est Qty per Ton Price per Ton Est Total Cost 

Richmond Transport 
1. 6A Slag 
6.   1x3 CC 
9. Mason Sand 

 
500 
100 
100 

 
$15.65 
$12.50 
$13.50 

 
$7,825.00 
$1,250.00 
$1,350.00       $10,425.00 

Osburn Industries 
7. 21aa Limestone 

 
1000 

 
$15.50 

 
$15,500.00     $15,500.00 

Edw C. Levy Co. 
   3. Pea Gravel 
   4. 60/40 Gravel 
   8. 2NS Sand  

 
300 
100 
200 

 
$15.89 
$18.19 
$13.39 

 
$4,767.00 
$1,819.00 
$2,678.00       $9,264.00 

Tri-City Aggregates 
2. 22A Gravel 
5.   Fill Sand 

 
1000 
2500 

 
$10.00 
$7.00 

 
$10,000.00 
$17,500.00     $27,500.00 

                                                                                 Estimated Total Cost:        $62,689.00   



 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Date:  3/16/2015 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Tom Darling, Financial Services Director 

Gary Mayer, Police Chief 
MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Director 

  Gert Paraskevin, IT Director  
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 - Kronos Workforce Management Software  
 

 

History 
 
The City of Troy manages approximately 600 full time and part time employees, and up to 900 during the 
summer months with the addition of seasonal labor.  Effectively managing all of these employees takes a great 
deal of effort.  Since labor costs and benefits account for approximately 64% of the General Fund operating 
budget and 62% of the overall operating budget, having the right tools to efficiently manage the workforce is 
essential.  
 
One of the key requirements in managing the workforce is to accurately account for their time on and off the 
job.  This information is used for several purposes: 
 

1. Payroll – to ensure each employee is paid a fair and accurate wage 
2. Time management – supervisors have to make sure staffing levels are consistent with job requirements 

and ensure over time hours are kept to a minimum 
3. Compliance – the City has to adhere to the requirements of six Collective Bargaining Agreements plus 

Federal and State laws 
4. Cost accounting– labor costs have to be accurately distributed to the appropriate accounting units 
5. Grant accounting – labor costs related to grants have to be accurately recorded and reported 

 
Historically the city has relied on very manual and paper intensive processes to capture time. For example, in 
the Public Works department employees that work in the field punch a time clock when they arrive and leave.  
They also fill out daily time sheets identifying hours worked in a very specific manner.  Did they work on drains, 
pavement markings, roadside cleanup, lighting, mowing, sweeping, etc.?  Was the work done on a major or 
local road?  Supervisors then collect these cards, compare to the punch card, and review for accurate 
reporting every day.  They are logged and transported to Finance on a daily basis.  Finance then logs the 
received timecards, enters them into a home grown Daily Timecard System, balances them to the logs, and 
ensures bargaining unit agreements are adhered to.  If there are any questions or missing timecards the 
appropriate supervisor is contacted.  If necessary some timecards are copied and filed for Grant accounting 
purposes.  Once all timecards for the pay period are entered and balanced, they are exported to New World 
Systems for payroll processing.   
 
In the Police Department supervisors for Road Patrol, Lockup and Communications fill out paper Daily Time 
Reports (DTR) for their staff ensuring staffing levels are appropriate, absences are being reported correctly, 
and bargaining unit agreements are adhered to.  These paper forms are then passed to PD clerical staff for 
entry into New World Systems for payroll processing.  If forms are incomplete or appear inaccurate the 
appropriate supervisor or officer is contacted to resolve the issue.   
 
Similar processes take place throughout the city.  Some form of paper timecard is completed or Excel forms 
are filled out and printed, then passed along for approval and possibly some type of recording within the 

dicksona
Text Box
J-04f



 

 

2 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

department, then on to data entry.    It is obvious this is a very manual process that is both time consuming and 
prone to error.   
 
In addition to recording time worked, a related activity is scheduling time to maintain adequate coverage, while 
managing requested time off and unexpected absences.  All departments maintain their own system for 
scheduling employees, recording vacation requests, personal time and sick time off. This information is then 
transferred to or verified against the actual time card.  This is particularly time consuming in the Police 
Department where supervisors have to ensure minimum staffing levels are maintained at all times and special 
details are filled.  All while adhering to collective bargaining agreement rules in regards to skill and seniority.  
Scheduling also becomes difficult when managing large groups of part time employees in the Library and 
Recreation departments.  Supervisory staff still rely on Excel spreadsheets that are manually updated through 
many communications with staff, then distributed and even printed. 
 
To determine how much time is spent managing the workforce in terms of timecards and scheduling a survey 
was conducted.  The results can be seen in Appendix A. Each year approximately 11,000 hours are dedicated 
to managing timecards and scheduling staff.  If a fraction of that time could be saved utilizing technology it 
would provide staff more time toward the City’s strategy to build and maintain strong, productive service levels.  
 
An analysis of the survey responses identified a potential savings of approximately 2,529 hours if time were 
entered directly into a system rather than managing paper time cards.  These are redundant or tracking tasks 
that would no longer be required. In addition, a conservative estimate of another 10% savings in terms of 
scheduling, entry and approval of timecards could also be realized from an automated and integrated system.  
That would be an additional 874 hours for a total savings of approximately 3,403 man hours.  Assuming an 
average position including benefits equates to about $100,000 per year, this represents approximately 
$160,000 gain in productivity per year. 
 
Purchasing 
 
The concept of employing technology by purchasing a system to manage the City’s workforce was advanced 
to the Technology Committee along with a vendor recommendation of Kronos.  Kronos was recommended for 
several reasons.  First of all New World Systems identified Kronos as the most common vendor within 
their customer base when interfacing to New World Payroll.  Secondly, Kronos is already available under 
two approved cooperative purchasing contracts; US Communities Cooperative Purchasing Contract and more 
recently under the Oakland County G2G Cooperative Contract Cloud solutions initiative.  Kronos is very widely 
used with over 20,000 US customers.  They are installed in over 700 state and local government organizations 
and 29 states in various departments.  A partial list of government customers is included in Appendix B.  
Telestaff has long been utilized by Public Safety organizations and was evaluated many years ago by the Troy 
Police Department.  At that time it did not meet our database standard (Microsoft SQL), but it has since been 
purchased by Kronos and now supports our standard. Telestaff is installed in over 900 public safety 
departments.  The Technology Committee was very supportive of the concept and participated in the 
evaluation of Kronos.  The evaluation timeline and results are detailed in Appendix C. 
 
The city would utilize the Oakland County G2G Cooperative Contract for the WorkForce Central system 
including the Activities and Advanced Scheduling modules which would provide the features required by the 
City.  This is a Cloud based solution hosted by Kronos, that bills monthly and can increase or decrease 
depending on the number of employees active in the system.  Oakland County competitively bid this contract 
and has negotiated to extend it to Oakland County cities, villages and townships. 
 
The city would utilize the US Communities Cooperative Purchasing Contract for the Telestaff module as it is 
not yet available on the Oakland County contract.  This module would be implemented for a large part of the 
Police Department.  An additional contract with communication vendor, Voxeo, would also have to be 



 

 

3 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

executed.  Voxeo services are integrated into Telestaff to utilize the automated notification feature which will 
contact the appropriate employees in the proper order, and document those communications. 
 
Financial 
 
Funds to implement Kronos are budgeted in the Capital Fund under Information Technology ($101,677) and 
Police ($71,220) to be reimbursed from Forfeiture Funds.  Ongoing expenses would be split between 
Information Technology ($53,133) and the Police Department ($7,296) operating budgets.  Complete cost 
details are outlined in Appendix D. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management is requesting authorization to enter into contracts with Kronos and Voxeo to provide 
workforce management software thereby utilizing technology to improve efficiencies and save approximately 
3,403 hours of staff effort spread across all departments.  That time could be directed towards the City’s 
strategy to build and maintain strong, productive service levels.  An integrated system would eliminate the 
need for paper timecards.  Kronos offers time clocks, phone apps and a web interface for employees and 
supervisors to update schedules, offer availability, accept open assignments, complete timecards, request time 
off, approve time, and access to all of this information.  Other benefits that would result from implementing 
Kronos includes improved payroll and accounting processes and accuracy; tools for enhanced tracking; 
consistent rules application mitigating compliance risk; and improved grant management. 
 
There would be a total of three contracts to be executed: 
 

1) Workforce Central is offered on the Oakland County G2G Cooperative Contract.  Pricing is most 
favorable as a hosted solution.  Onetime costs include implementation and training of approximately 
$48,100 and hardware costs for up to 13 time clocks of $53,577. Ongoing annual costs are 
approximately $47,868 for use of the Workforce Central modules.  This amount will vary depending on 
the number of active employees in the system each month and therefore licenses needed.  Time clock 
maintenance will be approximately $5,265 per year. 
 

2) Telestaff would be implemented as an on premise solution available on the US Communities 
Cooperative Purchasing Contract.  An in-house solution provided the most favorable pricing. Onetime 
costs for the software, implementation and training are approximately $68,720 with annual recurring 
maintenance costs of $5,496.  No additional hardware is required since the Police Department has 
excess capacity in their virtual server environment and they already host a SQL Server Database.  
Additional licensing and maintenance may be required as the number of staff utilizing Telestaff may 
change over time. 
 

3) A direct contract with communication vendor Voxeo would be required to support automated 
communications integrated with Telestaff.  There is a one-time set up fee of $2,500 plus a minimum 
monthly commitment of $150 which would provide 1,150 minutes of service.  The monthly cost could 
vary should the city require additional minutes at $0.13 per minute. 

 
Approximate total costs:  Capital of $172,897 and annual operating of $60,429 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GMP/G:\Electronic Time Cards\Council\Council Memo.docx 



 

 

4 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

 Appendix A 
 

Survey Results 
 

Hours Summary 

 Hours per Pay Period Annualized Hours 

Create Timecards          187.58                     4,877  

Supervisor Approval            96.68                     2,514  

Other Timecard Related Tasks                100.92                     2,624  

Total               385.18                   10,015  

   

  Hours per month   

Scheduling Tasks 
                              

104.83                     1,258  

   

Total Hours                   11,273  

 
 

Department Breakdown 

 Timecards   

 Create Approve Other Total Schedule Total 

Assessing 45.50  26.00  -   71.50  -   72  

Building 
Operations 

390.00   13.00  104.00   507.00   72.00   579  

City Attorney  30.33   7.58  -   37.92  -   38 

City Clerk  13.00   4.33  -   17.33  -   17  

City Manager  78.00   26.00  -   104.00  -   104  

Fleet -   6.50   26.00   32.50  -   33  

Admin  26.00   13.00   43.33   82.33  -   82  

Parks/Streets 439.83  910.00  303.33   1,653.17  -   1,653  

Water/Sewer 530.83  390.00  -   920.83  -   921  

Engineering 143.00  104.00   78.00   325.00  -   325  

Finance  34.67   4.33  650.00   689.00  -   689  

Fire 110.50   26.00   34.67   171.17  -   171  

Human Resources  10.83   2.17   1.73   14.73  -   15  

IT  71.50   19.50   6.93   97.93  -   98  

Library 437.67   70.63  126.53   634.83   136.00   771  

Planning  13.00   13.00   2.17   28.17   12.00   40  

Police  1,417.00  819.00  1,196.00   3,432.00   864.00   4,296  

Purchasing  19.50   4.33  -   23.83  -   24  

Recreation  1,061.67   52.00   51.13   1,164.80   174.00   1,339  

Treasurer  4.33   2.17  -   6.50  -   7  

Total  4,877.17  2,513.55  2,623.83  10,014.55   1,258.00   11,274  

 
  



 

 

5 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

Appendix B 
 

Kronos Customers  
Partial Government Listing  

 

 

 
 

Name State Name State Name State

CITY OF DAPHNE ALABAMA FORT WAYNE FIRE INDIANA GRESHAM FIRE OREGON

CITY OF TUSCALOOSA ALABAMA HAMILTON COUNTY INDIANA HILLSBORO POLICE/FIRE OREGON

ANCHORAGE POLICE ALASKA VANDERBURGH COUNTY INDIANA MEDFORD FIRE OREGON

CITY OF SEWARD ALASKA STATE OF IOWA - DEPT OF HUMAN SERVICES IOWA MULTNOMAH COUNTY SHERIFF OREGON

FAIRBANKS POLICE ALASKA VERMILION PARISH SHERIFF LOUISIANA REDMOND FIRE OREGON

CHANDLER POLICE ARIZONA CITY OF GAITHERSBURG MARYLAND TUALATIN HILLS PARK AND REC OREGON

CITY OF APACHE JUNCTION ARIZONA CITY OF ROCKVILLE MARYLAND ALLEGHENY COUNTY, DEPT OF GENERAL SERVICES PENNSYLVANIA

CITY OF AVONDALE ARIZONA TOWN OF BROOKLINE MASSACHUSETTS CENTRE COUNTY PENNSYLVANIA

CITY OF MESA, ARIZONA ARIZONA CITY OF ANN ARBOR MIGHIGAN CHESTER COUNTY PENNSYLVANIA

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ CALIFORNIA CITY OF BATTLE CREEK MICHIGAN MONROEVILLE POLICE PENNSYLVANIA

COUNTY OF BUTTE CALIFORNIA CITY OF BURTON MICHIGAN MONTGOMERY TOWNSHIP PENNSYLVANIA

COUNTY OF MERCED CALIFORNIA CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS MICHIGAN WASHINGTON COUNTY PENNSYLVANIA

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO CALIFORNIA GENESEE COUNTY MICHIGAN CHARLESTON CO PARK/RECREA COMM SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU CALIFORNIA FLINT MASS TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY MICHIGAN NORTH MYRTLE BEACH (CITY OF) SOUTH CAROLINA

KINGS COUNTY CALIFORNIA OAKLAND COUNTY CHILDRENS VILLAGE MICHIGAN CITY OF SEVIERVILLE TENNESSEE

LONG BEACH FIRE CALIFORNIA THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT MICHIGAN NASHVILLE FIRE TENNESSEE

MONTEREY COUNTY SHERIFFS CALIFORNIA TOWNSHIP OF CANTON MICHIGAN CITY OF ARLINGTON, TX TEXAS

OAKLAND FIRE CALIFORNIA WATERFORD TOWNSHIP DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS MICHIGAN CITY OF BROWNWOOD TEXAS

SONOMA COUNTY CALIFORNIA WAYNE COUNTY PROBATE COURT MICHIGAN CITY OF EL PASO TEXAS

TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH CALIFORNIA CITY OF GULFPORT MISSISSIPPI CITY OF HOUSTON TEXAS

ADAMS COUNTY SHERIFF COLORADO HARRISON COUNTY MISSISSIPPI COUNTY OF CAMERON TEXAS

CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER - DOIT COLORADO DOUGLAS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS NEBRASKA PLANO FIRE TEXAS

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS COLORADO CITY OF MANCHESTER NEW HAMPSHIRE CARBON COUNTY UTAH

COUNTY OF BOULDER COLORADO CITY OF NASHUA NEW HAMPSHIRE PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION UTAH

DENVER POLICE COLORADO MORRIS COUNTY NEW JERSEY SALT LAKE CITY CORPORATION UTAH

STATE OF COLORADO - OIT/DPA COLORADO BERNALILLO COUNTY FIRE NEW MEXICO SALT LAKE CITY FIRE UTAH

TOWN OF AVON COLORADO DONA ANA COUNTY NEW MEXICO ARLINGTON COUNTY FIRE VIRGINIA

TOWN OF PARKER COLORADO RIO RANCHO POLICE NEW MEXICO CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA VIRGINIA

CITY OF STAMFORD CONNECTICUT SAN JUAN COUNTY NEW MEXICO AUBURN POLICE WASHINGTON

TOWN OF MANCHESTER CONNECTICUT CITY OF UTICA NEW YORK BELLEVUE FIRE WASHINGTON

DELAWARE RIVER AND BAY AUTHORITY DELAWARE TOWN OF GREECE PUBLIC WORKS NEW YORK EAST PIERCE FIRE AND RESCUE WASHINGTON

CITY OF FT WALTON BEACH FLORIDA WESTCHESTER COUNTY DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY NEW YORK EASTSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE WASHINGTON

CITY OF KISSIMMEE FLORIDA WHITE PLAINS POLICE NEW YORK LAKE STEVENS FIRE WASHINGTON

CITY OF ORLANDO FLORIDA ALBEMARLE CITY OF NORTH CAROLINA MOUNT VERNON FIRE WASHINGTON

CITY OF OVIEDO FLORIDA CITY OF WILMINGTON NORTH CAROLINA PORT OF SEATTLE FIRE WASHINGTON

ESCAMBIA COUNTY FLORIDA GUILFORD, COUNTY OF NORTH CAROLINA PUYALLUP POLICE WASHINGTON

FERNANDINA BEACH (CITY OF) FLORIDA KERNERSVILLE TOWN OF NORTH CAROLINA RENTON FIRE EMS WASHINGTON

MIAMI BEACH FIRE FLORIDA LEE COUNTY - SANFORD NC NORTH CAROLINA RENTON POLICE WASHINGTON

PALM BEACH GARDENS POLICE FLORIDA TOWN OF HUNTERSVILLE NORTH CAROLINA SHORELINE FIRE WASHINGTON

SANTA ROSA COUNTY SHERIFF OFFI FLORIDA WINSTON SALEM CITY OF NORTH CAROLINA SNOHOMISH COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS WASHINGTON

CITY OF ATLANTA GEORGIA CITY OF CLEVELAND OHIO SOUTH KING FIRE WASHINGTON

BOISE FIRE IDAHO CITY OF STRONGSVILLE OHIO SPOKANE FIRE WASHINGTON

DUPAGE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS ILLINOIS FRANKLIN COUNTY DD OHIO CHARLESTON WVA CITY OF WEST VIRGINIA

ELGIN FIRE ILLINOIS MONTGOMERY COUNTY OHIO CITY OF WAUKESHA WISCONSIN

FOX VALLEY PARK DISTRICT ILLINOIS STARK COUNTY OHIO COUNTY OF LANGLADE WISCONSIN

SCHAUMBURG POLICE ILLINOIS CITY OF ENID OKLAHOMA GREEN BAY POLICE WISCONSIN

CITY OF ANDERSON INDIANA ASHLAND POLICE OREGON KENOSHA COUNTY WISCONSIN

CITY OF AUBURN INDIANA CITY OF EUGENE OREGON MADISON POLICE WISCONSIN

CITY OF EAST CHICAGO INDIANA CLACKAMAS COUNTY FIRE OREGON MANITOWOC COUNTY WISCONSIN

CITY OF FRANKLIN INDIANA CORVALLIS FIRE OREGON OAK CREEK POLICE WISCONSIN

CITY OF GARY INDIANA DOUGLAS COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT OREGON RACINE COUNTY WISCONSIN

CITY OF SHELBYVILLE INDIANA



 

 

6 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

Appendix C 
 

Kronos Evaluation 
 
 

Date Product Attendance Results 

11/20/2014 WorkForce 
Ready  

11 member technology 
subcommittee 

Did not offer all the features to capture the detail 
required by the city. Determined a different 
product WorkForce Central would be more 
appropriate.  

12/15/2014 Telestaff  15 member technology 
subcommittee 

(additional staff invited 
specifically responsible 

for scheduling) 

This product is designed for the complex 
requirements of Public Safety to manage and 
record staffing levels.  Highly rated (5/5) by 
Police personnel in attendance. 

1/8/2015 WorkForce 
Central 

29 member technology 
committee 

Very well received by committee.  Includes all 
the features required by the City.  Offers several 
methods to capture time including time clock, 
web interface and smartphone app. Scheduling 
feature however was lacking to manage part 
time staff.  Overall rating 4.6/5. 

1/15/2015 Advanced 
Scheduling  

6 member technology 
subcommittee (staff 

specifically responsible 
for part time scheduling) 

Very well received by Library and Recreation 
staff to manage and schedule part time 
personnel.  Rating of 4.97/5. 

  



 

 

7 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

Appendix D 
 

Detailed Costs 
 

 

 

Licenses/

Count One Time Cost

 Annual 

Recurring Cost  

Kronos
Workforce Central  (Hosted)

Modules included Timekeeper 700          42,252                    

Advance Scheduler 240          3,744                       

Activities 120          1,872                       

Implementation/Training 48,100                         

Time clocks

Hardware 13            53,577                         

Maintenance 5,265                       

Oakland County G2G contract 101,677                      53,133                    

Telestaff (On Premise)

Software 145          19,902                         

Maintenance 4,976                       

Implementation/Training 48,818                         520

 US Communities contract 68,720                         5,496                       

Voxeo  (Hosted)

Telecom

Implementation 2,500                           

Calls 1,800                       

Voxeo contract 2,500                           1,800                       

Grand Total 172,897                      60,429                    



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 13, 2015 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven Vandette, City Engineer 
    
 
Subject: Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2014 
 
 
History 
 
 In accordance with the guidelines for adding streets to the annual road mileage certification for cities 

and villages, the following platted and non-platted streets require a resolution from Council to accept 
jurisdiction of these streets.  

 
Additions: 
Beachview Court Beachview Estates Site Condominiums 
Sachin Way Alpine Meadows Site Condominiums 
Evaline Drive McCormick & Lawrence Little Farms 
Tanner Court Crestwood Site Condominiums 
Poppleton Court Poppleton Ridge Site Condominiums 
Huron Court  

 
The addition of these local streets will bring the local road mileage total to 267.01 miles, the major total 
will remain at 57.34 miles. 
 

Financial 
 
 The City of Troy's allocation of Michigan Transportation Funds is based on the number of miles of road 

under City jurisdiction.  The roads listed under additions are under control of the City, open for public 
purposes, and are being maintained by the City.  It is necessary that the foregoing roads be added to 
the Act 51 mileage report so that transportation funds can be properly allocated to the City of Troy. 

 
Recommendation 
 
 It is recommended that the roads listed above, under additions, be accepted and certified for the Act 

51 mileage report. 
 
 

1 
SF/sf\G:\Funding Issues\ACT 51\2014\Agenda Item 2014.docx 

dicksona
Text Box
J-05



Beachview Court

Poppleton

Sachin Way

Huron Court

Evaline

Tanner Court

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

BIG BEAVER

LONG LAKE

C
O

O
L

ID
G

E

L
IV

E
R

N
O

IS

C
R

O
O

K
S

A
D

A
M

S

WATTLES

City of Troy, Michigan I

finlaysg
Text Box
450 Feet

finlaysg
Text Box
675 Feet

finlaysg
Text Box
650 Feet

finlaysg
Text Box
225 Feet

finlaysg
Text Box
625 Feet

finlaysg
Text Box
130 Feet



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 13, 2015   
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements  
 Brook View Site Condominiums - Project No. 07.943.3 
 
 
History 
 
Brooke View Development, Inc. proposes to develop Brooke View Site Condominiums located east of 
Evanswood road and north of Square Lake in the SE ¼ of Section 1.   
 
Troy Planning Commission recommended preliminary site plan approval on October 8, 2013.  
 
Site grading and utility plans for this development were reviewed and recently approved by the 
Engineering Department.  The plans include municipal improvements which will be constructed by 
Brooke View Development, Inc. on behalf of the City of Troy: sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water 
main, detention, paving, sidewalks, soil erosion and landscaping Improvements.  The required fees 
and refundable escrow deposits in the form of Irrevocable Bank Letter of Credit and 10% Cash, that 
will assure completion of the municipal improvements, have been provided by Brooke View 
Development, Inc. (see attached Private Agreement).  
 
Recommendation 
 
Approval of the Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) is 
recommended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

dicksona
Text Box
J-06



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

1,353

1:

Feet1,3530 676

finlaysg
Polygon

finlaysg
Callout
Brooke View Site Condominiums - 9 Units















 

 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

 
Date:           March 19, 2015              
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager     
  
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
    
Subject: Request for Authorization to Make an Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Property for the 

Redevelopment of Fire Station #4 – Sidwell #88-20-25-352-030  
 

 
Background 
 
In connection with the proposed redevelopment of Fire Station #4 in Section 25, the City of Troy has 
made a conditioned offer in the amount of $175,000.00 to the Nisreen and Abbas Albedry owners of the 
property located at 2121 East Maple Road, having Sidwell #88-20-25-352-030. 
 
The subject parcel is approximately .44 acres in size with a 1,016 square foot single family residence 
and a 2-car detached garage. The property is currently occupied by a tenant family. The sellers have 
asked to remove furniture and fixtures in the home and have committed to vacate the property by  
June 30, 2015.  
 
Guided by an appraisal prepared by the appraisal firm of R.S. Thomas & Associates, Inc./Harold Blake 
Company, reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Deputy Assessor & State Licensed Appraiser, and by 
comparing current sales and listings for replacement properties in proximity to the subject property, 
staff believes the amount offered is justifiable for this acquisition.  

 
 
Recommendation 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this property, Staff requests that City Council approve 
the attached Conditioned Purchase Agreement in the amount of $175,000.00. 

 
 
Fund Availability 
 
Monies for the acquisition of this parcel are available in the Capital Fire Building fund. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LF\MEMOSTOMAYORANDCC\Firestation#4.docx 

dicksona
Text Box
J-07



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

354

1:

Feet3540 177



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 17, 2015 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
    
Subject: Request for Acceptance of Four Warranty Deeds and Six Permanent Easements for  

Oak Forest Site Condominium - Sidwell #88-20-11-201-028 & 030  
 
 
 
History 
 
As part of the development of the Oak Forest Site Condominium located south of Square Lake and 
west of John R in the northeast ¼ of Section 11, the Engineering department has received four 
warranty deeds for right-of-way and detention purposes, six permanent easements for storm sewers 
and surface drainage, public utilities, sanitary sewers, clear vision, landscape and non-access 
greenbelt, and an entry marker from Oak Forest, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell  
#88-20-11-201-028 & 030. 
 
The format and content of these easements and warranty deeds is consistent with conveyances 
previously accepted by City Council.  
 
 
Financial 
 
The consideration amount on each document is $1.00 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easements and warranty 
deeds consistent with our policy of accepting easements and warranty deeds for development and 
improvement purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LF/G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\OakForest 3-17-15.doc 

1 
 

dicksona
Text Box
J-08





Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

1,414

1:

Feet1,4140 707

















































































dicksona
Text Box
P-01a









Traffic Committee Minutes – January 21, 2015  FINAL 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, January 21, 2015 in 
the Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall.  Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting 
to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
Present:  Ollie Apahidean 
    Tim Brandstetter 
    Ted Halsey 
    Al Petrulis 
    Pete Ziegenfelder 
     
Absent:   David Easterbrook 
    Richard Kilmer 
 
Also present: John & Anne Whipple, 1280 Glaser 
    Roberta Wells, 1368 Glaser 
    Cliff Dettioff, 1330 Glaser 
    Eileen Kruper, 1151 Glaser 
    Sgt. Mike Szuminski, Police Department 
    Lt. Eric Caloia, Fire Department 
    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
         
2. Minutes – November 19, 2014 
 
RESOLUTION # 2015-01-01 
  
Moved by Halsey 
Seconded by Brandstetter 
 
To approve the November 19, 2014 minutes as printed. 
 
YES:   All 5  (Apahidean, Brandstetter, Halsey, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  2 (Easterbrook, Kilmer) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
3.  Request for No Left Turn Sign – Kroger Gas Station – Rochester Road 
 
Residents on Glaser request that left turns be prohibited to the Kroger gas station on the 
west side of Rochester Road at the southerly driveway.  Residents report that turning traffic 
creates conflicts with traffic trying to turn to or from Glaser.   

Page 1 of 4 
 

dicksona
Text Box
P-01b



Traffic Committee Minutes – January 21, 2015  FINAL 

Eileen Kruper of 1151 Glaser supports the installation of a No Left Turn sign at the southerly 
driveway to the Kroger gas station.  She has lived on Glaser for over 40 years and said 
traffic is very heavy and makes turning to/from Glaser difficult.  She reports that cars line up 
in the center turn lane and impede turning vehicles ability to access Glaser.  Ms. Kruper 
stated that getting out of Glaser is generally not the problem it is the left turn into Glaser that 
is difficult. 
 
Roberta Wiles of 1368 Glaser does not support the installation of a sign as she said the 
problem is not isolated to the Kroger gas station.  It is rather a problem in this area and may 
even be worse with McDonalds and Pizza Hut traffic.  Ms. Wiles said that a sign would not 
work and would not solve any problem. 
 
Cliff Dettioff of 1330 Glaser reiterated that a sign would not help.  Mr. Dettioff states that the 
existing Do Not Block Intersection sign on the south side of Glaser is not obeyed and traffic 
routinely blocks the Glaser intersection.  He also stated that left turns into Glaser are difficult. 
 
Anne Whipple of 1330 Glaser agrees that the sign would not stop or prevent the issue with 
center turn lane conflicts and that the sign would do and mean nothing.  She supports a 
boulevard cross section from Wattles to Long Lake and believes this would be the solution 
to the issues in this area as all turns would be indirect. 
 
John Whipple of 1330 Glaser echoed the statements made previously and added that 
drivers turn left out of the southerly driveway even though it is signed “Turn Right Only” and 
there is a physical barrier in the center of the driveway to force traffic to the right (porkchop).  
He believes that there needs to be more police presence. 
 
Sgt. Szuminski responded that the law prohibits using the center turn lane as a passing lane.  
Sgt. Szuminski went on to explain that with the reduction in police staff that they are not able 
to police all areas, especially during peak hours when issues are the greatest.  The police 
officers on the road must respond to higher priority calls and/or address other areas of the 
city that have more significant issues. 
 
Ms. Wells added that traffic from the other businesses in this area are all using the center 
turn lane as a passing/acceleration lane further exacerbating the problem.  She is very 
concerned that when Marinelli’s is occupied the issue will become even worse. 
 
There was also discussion of the large vacant parcel of property adjacent to DPW and 
behind Versatube and what might go in there and the impact that could have on traffic. 
 
Mr. Halsey discussed Crooks at Big Beaver that has similar issues with turning traffic.  This 
area has been reviewed numerous times and there has been no good solution found.  He 
discussed the difficulty in placing a sign that would be visible for traffic looking to access the 
Kroger gas station.   He agreed that Kroger gas station is not the only problem in this area. 
 
Mr. Apahidean agreed that the problem is greater than just at Kroger.  He added that 
Rochester, from Long Lake to 1,000’ south is the problem.  Mr. Apahidean discussed that 

Page 2 of 4 
 



Traffic Committee Minutes – January 21, 2015  FINAL 

an operational change to private site access must be warranted based on data, such as 
crash data.  He noted that there were three (3) crashes in 2013 and three (3) crashes in 
2014 in this segment.  He further reviewed additional crash data and stated that from 2011-
2013 there was only one (1) documented crash (UD-10) from the Kroger site to Rochester 
Road.  There have been no documented crashes involving the southerly driveway.  He found 
that there have been more frequent crashes at the McDonalds site.  It is difficult to claim a 
safety issue with no crashes to base it on.  Mr. Apahidean said that it is difficult to quantify 
“close calls”. 
 
Mr. Brandstetter was concerned that if you eliminated left turns into the southerly driveway 
that drivers would be forced to only use the northerly driveway to the Kroger gas station.  
This would cause more vehicles to stack in the center turn lane waiting for gaps in 
southbound Rochester road traffic.  This could potentially create one solid line of vehicles 
stacking in the center turn lane rather than the two (2) “stacks” of vehicles that provides 
somewhat of a gap for turning traffic. 
 
Sgt. Szuminski responded to a question about drivers cutting through private property.  It is 
illegal to cut through private property if you are doing it to avoid a traffic control device (i.e. 
the Stop sign at Glaser).   
 
RESOLUTION # 2015-01-02 
 
Moved by Petrulis 
Seconded by Brandstetter 
 
RESOLVED, that NO changes be made at the southerly driveway to the Kroger gas station 
site on the west side of Rochester Road.   

 
YES:  All 5 (Apahidean, Brandstetter, Halsey, Petrulis, Ziegenfelder) 
NO:   None  
ABSENT:  2 (Easterbrook, Kilmer) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
4. Public Comment 
 
A discussion regarding the long range plan for this area was discussed.  A project is currently 
included in the city’s 6-year CIP with federal funding available in 2019.  This project would 
widen and reconstruct Rochester Road from the current 5-lane cross section to a 6-lane 
boulevard from north of Wattles to north of Big Beaver. 
 
All agreed this would be the preferred option as all turns would then be indirect and the 
turning conflicts would be removed.  There are some issues that the city is reviewing 
currently as crash history and traffic volumes need to be addressed based on current and 
future projected traffic growth rates.  Impacting the traffic volumes are previous widening 
projects as well as upcoming widening projects on John R and Dequindre Roads.   
 

Page 3 of 4 
 



Traffic Committee Minutes – January 21, 2015  FINAL 

5. Other Business 
 
The Traffic Engineer provided an update on the future reconstruction and widening projects 
on John R, Dequindre, Livernois and Rochester Roads.  
 
6. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m.  
 
                                          ___           
Pete Ziegenfelder, Chairperson    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2015\1_January 21\Minutes_01212015_DRAFT.docx 

Page 4 of 4 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL FEBRUARY 4, 2015 
 
 

1 
 

 
Mr. Abitheira called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on February 4, 2015 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Gary Abitheira 
Teresa Brooks 
Andrew Schuster 
 
Absent: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Brian Kischnick 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
David Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief/Fire Prevention 
Eric Caloia, Fire Lieutenant 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 
Mr. Grusnick advised the applicants the Board would entertain a request to postpone an 
item until a full Board is present. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Brooks 
Support by: Schuster 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 7, 2015 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (3) 
Absent: Dziurman, Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

dicksona
Text Box
P-01c



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL FEBRUARY 4, 2015 
 
 

2 
 

3. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, JAMES R. GIRLING, 3959 NASH – This property is a 

double front corner lot. As such it has a required front setback along both Nash and 
Ogden. An inspection of this property on November 11, 2014 revealed the existing 
30” high wood fence in the front setback along Ogden has been modified to a 44” 
high non-obscuring split rail wood fence. The petitioner is requesting a variance from 
the Board to allow the altered 44” high fence in the Ogden front setback. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reviewed the new variance request application and refreshed the 
Board members of the discussion and action taken on the previous submittal in 
January for the same property. He reported the department received one response 
to the public hearing notices in support of the variance request. 
 
Mr. Grusnick showed a photograph of the fence that demonstrated the difference of 
proposed construction materials and color uniformity from the previous application to 
the application before the Board today. 
 
Mr. Girling brought in material samples. He addressed the painting and split rail 
construction materials that would blend together the end product in color and 
uniformity. 
 
Mr. Abitheira opened the floor for public comment. He acknowledged there was no 
one present to speak and closed the floor. 
 
Moved by: Brooks 
Support by: Schuster 
 

RESOLVED, To grant the variance request, based on the following reasons: 
 

1. The applicant has a hardship and practical difficulty. 
2. The applicant has made an effort to construct the fence as seamless as possible 

without dismantling the entire fence. 
3. The fence is non-obscuring. 
 

Yes: All present (3) 
Absent: Dziurman, Kischnick 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, BEAUMONT HOSPITAL, 44201 DEQUINDRE – For the 
continued relief of Chapter 7, Section 717.5.5 of the 2012 Michigan Building Code  
to omit smoke dampers in ductwork penetrating smoke barriers throughout William 
Beaumont Hospital Troy campus. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reviewed the variance request and requirements of the Michigan 
Building Code. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL FEBRUARY 4, 2015 
 
 

3 
 

Jake Meadows of Jones Lang LaSalle, real estate and development group for 
Beaumont Health System, summarized the documentation provided with the 
application and asked the Board’s approval to use quick response sprinkler heads 
within the facility as an alternative to meet the NFPA (National File Protection 
Association) Life Safety Code and 2012 Michigan Building Code requirement for 
smoke dampers. Mr. Meadows said the variance request is consistent with two 
previous requests in 2005 and 2009. 
 
Mr. Schuster disclosed one attorney in his law firm represents Troy Beaumont 
Hospital but he himself has no personal involvement with the hospital and sees no 
reason to recuse himself from acting on the matter. 
 
Assistant Fire Chief Roberts and Fire Lieutenant Caloia stated no objections to the 
variance request. 
 
Mr. Abitheira acknowledged there was no one present from the public to speak on 
the item. 
 
Moved by: Brooks 
Support by: Schuster 
 

RESOLVED, To grant the variance request, for the following reason: 
 

1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 
intent. 

 

Yes: All present (3) 
Absent: Dziurman, Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None. 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 3:15 p.m. 







dicksona
Text Box
P-01d













ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING FINAL February 17, 2015 

1 

On February 17, 2015, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, Chairman 
Clark called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Thomas Desmond 
David Eisenbacher 
David Lambert 
Philip Sanzica 
 

Absent 
Allen Kneale 
 

Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Julie Q. Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – December 16, 2014 
 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Courtney 
 

RESOLVED, to approve the December 16, 2014 meeting minutes. 
 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes  
 
4. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR 

 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Courtney 
 

RESOLVED, to nominate David Eisenbacher as Vice Chair. 
 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 

dicksona
Text Box
P-01e



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING FINAL February 17, 2015 

2 

5. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, DAVID J. PARDUN, 1321 BOYD STREET – In order to split 

a parcel of land into two parcels, a 305.5 square foot variance from the 7,500 square 
foot minimum lot size.  Zoning Ordinance Section 4.06 (C) R-1E Zoning District. 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Lambert 
 

RESOLVED, to deny the variance. 
 

Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Lambert 
 

RESOLVED, to table the motion to the March 17, 2015 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Meeting. 
 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, MICHAEL AND CATHLEEN CLANCY, 2774 ORCHARD 
TRAIL – In order to construct an addition to the home, a 15 foot variance from the 
required 45 foot rear yard setback. Zoning Ordinance Section 4.06 (C) R-1A Zoning 
District. 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Desmond 
 

RESOLVED, to grant the variance as requested. 
 

Yes: All 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS - None 
 

7. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – Mr. Evans invited the Board to view a potential 
alternate meeting space, City Council Board Room, after the adjournment of this 
meeting. 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 8:21 p.m. 





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 24, 2015 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on February 24, 2015 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Ollie Apahidean 
Karen Crusse 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Padma Kuppa (arrived 7:05 p.m.) 
Philip Sanzica 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Julie Quinlan Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-02-009 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Kuppa 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-02-010 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 10, 2015 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Kuppa 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

dicksona
Text Box
P-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 24, 2015 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Sanzica gave a report on the February 17, 2015 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting. 
He addressed: 
 1321 Boyd, proposed property split postponed to March meeting. 
 2774 Orchard Trail, addition to home granted. 
 

(Ms. Kuppa arrived at 7:05 p.m.) 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a report on the February 18, 2015 Downtown Development Authority 
meeting. The following items were addressed: 
 Budget. 
 Maintenance along Big Beaver. 
 Move Across Troy project. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant informed the Board of recent applications and activity, as follows: 
 Sustainable Development Project, 2900 Industrial Row. 
 Preliminary Site Condominium Application, Hunters Park 2. 
 Informal meetings on potential projects. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
8. MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

 
Mr. Carlisle gave an update on the Master Plan progress. His PowerPoint presentation 
addressed: 
 Big Beaver Symposium. 
 High School Forum. 
 Neighborhood Association Forum. 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MARCH 4, 2015 

1 

 

Chair Dziurman called the meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 3:00 PM 
on Wednesday, March 4, 2015 in the City Council Board Room of Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Theodore Dziurman – Chair 
Teresa Brooks – Member 
Andrew Schuster – Member 
Brian Kischnick – Member 
Gary Abitheira – Member 
 

Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick – City of Troy Building Official 
Gerald Rice – Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Moved by: Brooks 
Seconded by: Schuster 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 4, 2015 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 

Yeas: All present 

MOTION CARRIED 

3. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, LISA RUDOLPH FOR PREMIUM ELECTRIC COMPANY 

INC., 1237 E. FOURTEEN MILE – A variance to allow the existing 84 square foot 
ground sign to be increased to a total of 148 square feet while maintaining the 
existing 11 foot setback from the front property line. The Sign Code would require 
the enlarged sign to be set back 30’ from the front property line. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reviewed the variance request. He indicated the correction of the 30’ 
required setback printed in the explanation. 
 
Ms. Rudolph from Premium Electric Company stated they were requested to install 
an LED sign which would be placed on the existing sign and would not be obtrusive. 
 
Ms. Elezaj from Expert Collision took photos from various businesses' signs in the 
area that have LED signs. 
 
Mr. Grusnick stated that parts of the proposed sign would be over 24” in thickness. 
These areas are calculated two times.  

dicksona
Text Box
P-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MARCH 4, 2015 

2 

 

There was a general discussion that followed. Ms. Elezaj stated the AAA sign will be 
removed. They will list services, hours and special events on the LED display. There 
were no responses from surrounding businesses. 
 
Moved by: Schuster 
Seconded by: Kischnick 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance request, pending the removal of the AAA sign, 
based on the following reason: 

1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 
intent of Chapter 85. 

 
Yeas: All present 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
B. VARIANCE REQUEST, CHERYL BELBOT OF KIRCO MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES, 101-201 W. BIG BEAVER – The existing signage including 9 ground 
signs on the property commonly known as the Columbia Center Campus was 
originally approved by this Board in April of 2000. Again in October of 2011 this 
Board approved a variance to allow the installation of an additional ground sign. 
There are currently 10 regulated ground signs on the property. The petitioner is 
requesting a variance to allow an additional 24 square foot ground sign. 
 
Mr. Schuster disclosed his law firm has offices at this location. He has no 
involvement on leasing decisions or any other involvement, financial or otherwise, 
with Kirco and feels there is no conflict. 
 
Mr. Kischnick asked if he is a principal in the firm. Mr. Schuster stated he is not. The 
Board agreed and allowed Mr. Schuster to vote on the item. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reviewed the variance request. The ordinance allows 1 main sign per 
building and 1 additional secondary sign per building. There are 4 buildings on the 
property, which would allow 8 signs. They have received variances for 2 additional 
signs. 
 
Ms. Belbot stated this is the first for-lease sign in her twelve years with the company. 
 
Ms. Brooks asked if there was room to add additional tenants on existing sign. 
 
Ms. Belbot stated the main tenant signs allow for tenant name changes. As part of 
lease negotiations there is no other signage allowed. 
 
There was a general discussion that followed. Building ownership does not allow 
signage on the exterior walls of the building. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MARCH 4, 2015 

3 

 

Ms. Belbot stated the proposed sign would be intended as a temporary sign. If the 
Board put a limit on how long the sign can stay up that would be acceptable. 
 
Mr. Abitheira motioned to approve a 1 year for-lease sign. 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Seconded by: Brooks 

RESOLVED, To grant the variance request, with the stipulation of the removal of the 
AAA sign, based on the following reason: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 

intent of Chapter 85. 
 
Yeas: All present 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS 

None. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 
 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

As of the April meeting, the Board will be joined by Michael Morris who is replacing 
Teresa Brooks from the Oakland County Health Department.  
 
City Attorney Lori Bluhm would like to visit the Board in either April or May. 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 3:33 PM. 
 
 
 
         
 Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
 
 
         
 Gerald Rice, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2015\Draft\2015 03 04 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



 
Date:  March 10, 2015 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From:  Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 

Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
      
Subject:  Federal Aid Funding for Major Road Projects 
 Rochester, Barclay to Trinway (Troy) and Dequindre, Long Lake to Auburn (RCOC) 

 
Background: 
 
The Oakland County Federal Aid Funding Committee, of which Troy is a member, held their annual 
meeting on March 10 to consider federal aid funding for various road projects throughout the County.  
Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer, Bill Huotari, attended as Troy’s representative and voting 
member among large communities. 
 
Troy was successful in receiving $4,000,000 in federal funds for the Rochester Road, Barclay to 
Trinway right-of-way phase in 2017.  Troy is the lead agency on this project and is responsible for the 
design, right-of-way acquisition and construction management of the project.  Troy’s local match for 
the right-of-way phase is $1,000,000.   
 
The Rochester Road construction phase is anticipated to start in 2019. It was previously approved for 
funding with $10,400,000 in federal funds and a corresponding local match by Troy of $2,600,000. 
The project will widen and reconstruct Rochester Road to a six-lane concrete boulevard (an 
extension of the existing boulevard from just north of Wattles through Long Lake Road).  Rochester 
Road is included in the City’s 6-Year CIP with our local match provided from the Major Road and 
Water and Sewer funds. 
 
The Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) was successful in receiving an additional 
$6,400,000 in federal funds for the construction phase of the Dequindre Road, Long Lake to Auburn 
project in 2016.  This project will widen and reconstruct Dequindre to a 5-lane concrete pavement at 
an estimated cost of $23,000,000.  The local match is shared by the RCOC, Macomb County 
Department of Roads (MCDR), Shelby Township and the Cities of Rochester Hills, Sterling Heights 
and Troy.   
 
The RCOC is the lead agency on the Dequindre project and is responsible for the design, right-of-
way acquisition and ultimately the construction management.  Troy’s share of the construction cost is 
estimated at $782,000, based on 68% of the total project being within Troy/Oakland County.  It is 
then split four (4) ways by RCOC, MCDR, Rochester Hills and Troy.  Dequindre Road is included in 
the City’s 6-Year CIP with our local match provided from the Major Road and Water and Sewer 
funds. 
 
WJH/  G:\Funding Issues\TIP Submittals\FY 2018\To CC re Rochester and Dequindre Funding.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

dicksona
Text Box
P-02a



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

9,723

1:

Feet9,7230 4,861



 

 

 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT 

2014 Annual Report 

dicksona
Text Box
P-02b



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 2 

Table of  Contents 

 

 Message from Chief Gary Mayer  ................................. 3 

 

 Mission, Vision, and Core Values  ............................... 4 

 

 Department History  .................................................... 5 

 

 In Memory  ................................................................... 6 

 

 Department Strength and Budget  .......................... 7 - 9 

 

 Police Memorial Day and Awards  ....................... 14 - 16 

 

 Community Outreach  .......................................... 17 - 20 

 

 Police Administration  .......................................... 21 - 32 

 

 Investigative/Administrative Services Division ... 33 - 46 

 

 Operations Division  ............................................. 47 - 63 

 

Volunteer Program  .................................................... 64 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 3 

 

Message from the Chief 

To Troy City Manager Brian Kischnick: 

 

I am pleased to present the 2014 Troy Police Department Annual Report.    

Included in this report you will find    operational data, crime statistics, and       

a variety of other information on police activity in 2014.  

  

In 2014, Troy saw a 12.5% decrease in Group A crimes, a 5.1% decrease in 

Group B crimes, and reductions in nearly every serious crime category.  The 

only notable exception was robbery which rose from six to ten.  It is important 

to note that our five year average in the robbery category is ten.    

  

We have been working diligently to rebuild the Police Department.  In 2014, we hired nine Police Officers, two    

Police Service Aides, and one Records Clerk.  In addition, we promoted two Sergeants and two Communications 

Supervisors.  Of our authorized strength of 101 sworn officers, 93 were on board at the end of 2014.  I expect to 

have the department fully staffed by the end of the first quarter of 2015.  All new hires and those promoted have 

been doing a great job and are a valuable addition to our Department.     

 

With the improved staffing, we have been able to work on a number of new initiatives.  With a focus on public   

safety and customer service, I am pleased to announce the following: 

 

 Troy PD continues to be a leader and innovator in the way we approach crime fighting.  We now employ a full-

time Crime Data Analyst (first in the local area) and a full-time Emergency Management Specialist 

 Troy PD continues to leverage new technological advancements in our daily pursuit to help solve and predict 

emerging crime trends and patterns 

 Troy PD continues to build new networking connections with assistance in the formation of the Michigan Crime 

Analyst Association 

 Troy PD continues to utilize citizen volunteers as Citizens on Patrol who act as extra eyes and ears for our patrol    

officers; we also have internal volunteers who work in our lobby, the Records Section, and the Investigative   

Section; the total volunteer hours increased from 3,044 in 2013 to 4,477 in 2014, an increase of 47%.   

 

This year’s annual report is very different than in years past.  Aside from the statistical information, we have also  

included photographs and audio/video links. This is in an effort to not only provide critical information in an easy to 

read format, but it also personalizes the people who work so hard in keeping Troy the safest city in Michigan       

(CQ Press City Crime Rankings). 

  

In closing, I would like to commend all of the hard working men and women of the Troy Police Department.  Our 

Department is still rebuilding but the foundation is set on great people who remain committed to our mission and 

focused on our vision.  

        

 

       Gary G. Mayer 

       Chief of Police 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 4 

Mission, Vision, and Core Values 

 

CORE VALUES 

 

These values reflect the principles, qualities and standards upon which our rules, orders, policies, goals, 

and operating philosophy are based.  Although we may need to balance them, they are non-negotiable 

and we will never ignore them. 
 

A. Integrity:  We value ethical conduct, honesty, and truthfulness.  We do what is right, pursuant to law 

and ethical standards, whenever we make decisions, engage in actions, or refrain from taking action. 
 

B. Respect:  We value human life, safety, and the dignity of people and commit ourselves to treating all 

people with compassion, respect, and concern. 
 

C. Laws and the Constitution:  We believe in the principles embodied in the Constitution and       

recognize the authority of federal, state, and local laws.  We respect and protect the rights of all    

citizens and treat all persons fairly and without favoritism. 
 

D. Accountability:  We are accountable to each other and to the citizens we serve. Therefore, we will 

strive to understand community values and expectations, and will communicate responsibly, openly, 

and honestly among ourselves and with the community. 
 

E. Problem Solving:  We listen to complaints and the explanation of problems with empathy and  sen-

sitivity, and work with citizens to resolve the underlying causes  of crime, disorder, and          disrup-

tions of the public peace. 
 

F. Professionalism:  We acknowledge the duties and responsibilities of our chosen profession, we 

demonstrate the specialized knowledge and skills we possess, and we commit ourselves to fulfilling 

our duties and responsibilities by utilizing our knowledge and skills in a manner that benefits our 

community.  

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

It is the mission of the Police Department to   enhance the 

quality of life in our community by protecting life and prop-

erty, and maintaining the peace through police service.   



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 5 

History 

The Troy of the past was a stable farming community with a very low crime rate and very little traffic.  Nevertheless, by the 

1950’s there was a growing desire for the township to have its own police department so that response times would be short 

when emergencies did occur.  

  

The Troy Police Department traces its history back to the July 1952 hiring of Chief David Gratopp and Patrolman Willard 

Schwandt who patrolled what was then Troy Township. 

In November 1952, the Department added a third 

officer, Patrolman Eugene Sackner.  In 1955, Troy 

incorporated and the Police Department began to 

grow, both in size and in scope of operation to 

meet the needs of the rapidly changing city. 

 

The Troy Police Department is a full service   

agency of 101 sworn officers and 51civilian       

personnel, serving a population of more than 

82,000 residents.  The  Department enjoys an    

outstanding reputation within the community as 

well as with other law enforcement agencies. 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 6 

In Memory 

CHARLES E. SMETANA 
 

Officer Charles E. Smetana died on December 11, 1969.  He was respond-

ing to a personal injury accident when he himself became involved in a 

crash.  Officer Smetana, only 33, gave his life trying to help others in need.  

His sacrifice will always be remembered. 

MARTIN D. CHIVAS 
 

Officer Martin “Marty” D. Chivas was killed on April 22, 1974.  While  

investigating a robbery in progress at a service station, he was shot and killed 

by the burglars.  The suspects were prison   escapees on a multi-state crime 

spree.  Marty was only 24 years old.  Officer Chivas laid down his life for the 

citizens of Troy.  He died in valor and will never be forgotten. 

CHARLES T. MULVIHILL 
 

Officer Charles “Chuck” T. Mulvihill died while serving the citizens  of Troy 

on September 11, 2001.  He was responding to a call for service when he  

suffered apparent heart failure.  Chuck served the City of Troy for 10 of his 

15 years as a police officer and was the President of the  

Troy Police Officers Association.  His popularity and dedication to  

service will always be remembered. 

 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 7 

Organizational Chart 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 8 

Department Strength 

89
102 105 105

114 120
131 132 132 135 137 137 137 137 136 135 135 131

123 123

99 99 101

26
37 33 44 47 48

52 53 53 58 58 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 56 51 49.5 49.5 51.5

Department Strength - Sworn, Non-Sworn and 
Civilian Personnel

Historical 1978 - Projected 2015

SWORN NON SWORN/CIVILIAN



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 9 

Department Budget 

 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 10 

2014 Promotions 

David Quaiatto 

Promoted to Sergeant 

Laurence Schehr  

Promoted to Sergeant 

Patrick Flood 

Promoted to Officer 

Shawn Flint 

Promoted to  

Communications Supervisor 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 11 

2014 New Hires 

Officer Timothy Hill Officer Bruce Gentry Officer Clint Owensby 

Officer Kelly Bataglia Officer Rachel Pink Officer Jason Tharrett 

Officer Evan Leithauser Officer Alejandro Parra 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 12 

2014 New Hires 

Communications Supervisor 

Johnathan Schmitt 

Police Service Aide 

Michael Grosso 

Police Service Aide 

Michael Sawalha 

Records Clerk 

Janette Hough 

Part-Time 

Background Investigator 

Kelly Mukomel 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 13 

2014 Retirees 

Sergeant Donald Ostrowski 

1989-2014 

Sergeant George Zielinski 

1981-2014 

Officer Carl Barton 

1989-2014 

Officer Jeffrey Denny 

1980-2014 

Communications Supervisor 

Paul Mailloux 

1998-2014 

Communications Supervisor 

Renee Jelley 

1997-2014 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 14 

Police Memorial Day 
PROCLAMATION 

 

To pay tribute to the law enforcement officers  

who have made the ultimate sacrifice for our country  

and to voice our appreciation for all those who  

currently serve on the front lines of the battle against crime,  

the Congress, by a joint resolution approved October 1, 1962,  

has authorized and requested the President to   

designate May 15 of each year as 

"Peace Officers Memorial Day" 

and the week in which it falls as 

"Police Week" 

and by Public Law 102-322 has requested 

that the flag be flown at half-staff on 

Peace Officers Memorial Day 
 

John F. Kennedy 
President of the United States 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 15 

2014 Awards 

COMMAND OFFICER OF THE YEAR 

Sergeant Robert Wolfe 

POLICE OFFICER OF THE YEAR 

Officer Milton Stansbury 

NON-SWORN EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR 

Police Service Aide Christopher O’Brien 

CHIEF’S AWARD 

Sergeant Andrew Breidenich 

CHIEF’S AWARD 

Sergeant Andrew Satterfield 

CHIEF’S AWARD 

Sergeant Scott Smith 

CHIEF’S AWARD 

Analyst/Planner Jeffrey Oberski 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 16 

2014 Awards 

Sergeant Scott Smith 

Officer Gregory Stopczynski 

Captain Keith Frye 

Lieutenant Christopher Stout 

Sergeant Donald Ostrowski 

Sergeant Andrew Satterfield 

Sergeant Robert Wolfe 

Officer Antonio Cascioli 

Officer Jason Clark 

Officer Michelle Cooney 

Officer Patrick Dyjewski 

Officer Patrick Flood 

Officer David Isham 

Officer Edwin Julian 

Officer Daniel Langbeen 

Officer James Mork 

Officer Nicholas Pappas 

Officer Pietro Pizzorni 

Officer Greg Pokley 

Officer Kate Raczka 

Officer Lisa Rockafellow 

Officer Laurence Schehr 

Officer Kristine Shuler 

Officer Gregory Stopczynski 

Officer Ryan Whiteside 

Officer Brenna Yunkari 

CS Jason Strasz 

PSA Donald Buckbee 

PSA Daniel Modrich 

PSA Frederick Robinson 

Secretary Theresa Hope 

Research & Technology Administrator 

Ryan Wolf 

Sergeant Scott LaMilza 

Sergeant Donald Ostrowski 

Officer Russell Bragg 

Officer Timothy Daniels 

Officer Edwin Julian 

Officer Daniel Langbeen 

Officer Joseph Morgan 

Officer Kate Raczka 

Officer Frank Shuler 

Officer Adam Sinutko 

Officer Gregory Stopczynski 

Lieutenant Russel Harden 

Sergeant Michael Giorgi 

Sergeant Nathan Gobler 

Sergeant Scott LaMilza 

Sergeant Meghan Lehman 

Sergeant Justin Novak 

Sergeant Donald Ostrowski 

Sergeant David Quaiatto 

Sergeant Andrew Satterfield 

Officer Daniel Bachleda 

Officer Russell Barrows 

Officer Stephen Brazel 

Officer Antonio Cascioli 

Officer Timothy Daniels 

Officer Christina Giordano 

Officer Michael Giordano 

Officer Nkrumah Hutson 

Officer Edwin Julian 

Officer Matthew Kramer 

Officer Daniel Langbeen 

Officer Patrick McWilliams 

Officer Michael Meinzinger 

Officer Peter Minton 

Officer Joseph Morgan 

Officer Joseph Mouch 

Officer Joshua Muhlenbeck 

Officer Brandon Parker 

Officer Greg Pokley 

Officer Kate Raczka 

Officer Melissa Raymer 

Officer Lisa Rockafellow 

Officer Laurence Schehr 

Officer Kristine Shuler 

Officer Adam Sinutko 

Officer Robert Smith 

Officer Gregory Stopczynski 

Officer Jeffrey Strong 

Officer William Taylor 

Officer Brian Vallance-Jones 

Officer Brian Warzecha 

Officer Ryan Whiteside 

PSA Kathryn Bourlier 

PSA Christopher O’Brien 

PSA Gregory Schelesky 

Departmental Commendation 

Chief Gary Mayer 

Sergeant Meghan Lehman 

Sergeant David Quaiatto 

Officer Russell Bragg 

Officer Timothy Daniels 

Officer Edwin Julian 

Officer Joseph Morgan 

Officer James Mork 

Officer Lisa Rockafellow 

Officer Milton Stansbury 

Officer Gregory Stopczynski 

Officer Brian Vallance-Jones 

Departmental Unit Citation 

Merit Service Award 

Safe Driving Award 

Outside Agency Award 

Departmental Citation 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 17 

Open House 

Troy PD Open House 

 Annual event to offer Troy residents an opportunity to become acquainted 

with their Police Department 

 Scheduled in May during Police Week 

 

2014 Statistics 

 Saturday, May 17, 2014; 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 Participation 

 More than 40 Department personnel 

 25 citizen volunteers and three teenage volunteers 

 Visitors 

 391 adults and 361 children 

 Activities and Demonstrations 

 Building Tours 

 Communications Section:  opportunity to sit and observe call-takers and 

dispatchers in action 

 Lock-Up Section:  opportunity to visit detention facility 

 Child Fingerprinting 

 K-9 Demonstrations 

 Evidence Technicians Demonstrations 

 Vehicles on site 

 Patrol cars 

 Vintage Hot Rod 

 Field Communications Unit (part of Oakland County Communications Support Team) 

 Tactical Support Team van and Humvee 

 Alliance Mobile Health van (personnel available to administer blood pressure checks) 

 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 18 

Citizens Police Academy 

Citizens Police Academy 

 Eight week program; one evening each week for three hours 

 Police Department employees offer residents and business owners 

insight into how police officers perform their duties and how we 

serve the community 

 Purpose of program is to allow attendees to become familiar with 

their Police Department through classroom instruction and practical       

experience 

 Police Department’s intent to share with participants “who we are 

and what we do” 

 Two sessions in 2014 

 February 11, 2014 to April 1, 2014 - 27 participants 

 September 9, 2014 to October 28, 2014 - 29 participants 

 Curriculum includes a building tour and presentations from the following areas of our Department 

 Administration and Budget 

 Community Services Section 

 Communications Section 

 Criminal Investigations 

 Crisis Negotiation Team 

 Defensive Tactics 

 Emergency Response 

 Evidence Technician Unit 

 Firearms Range 

 Hazmat 

 K-9 Unit 

 Lock-Up Section 

 Ride-Along 

 Road Patrol 

 Special Task Forces 

 Staff Inspections 

 Tactical Support Team 

 TASER Demonstration 

 Traffic Safety Specialists 

 Training Section 

 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 19 

CARE House of  Oakland County 

CARE House of Oakland County 

 CARE House provides programs and services and children and families which span a continuum of care 

 All programs and services are provided at no cost to the children and families 

 Their programs have the following five specifics focuses: 

 ADVOCACY 

 The Court-Appointed Special Advocates program provides volunteer advocates for children who have been 

removed from their homes and are wards of the court due to abuse and neglect 

 COMMUNITY OUTREACH 

 The Stewards of Children child abuse prevention education teaches adults how to take responsibility for     

stopping child sexual abuse 

 INTERVENTION 

 When abuse is suspected, CARE House provides a safe place where a child’s voice can be heard;                       

a multi-disciplinary team observes a forensic interview of the child victim 

 PREVENTION 

 Early Head Start provides in-home family specialists for vulnerable families, from pre-natal support until the 

child reaches the age of three 

 TREATMENT 

 Individual therapy, group therapy for teen girls, and weekly family support groups all help to guide child victims 

and their non-offending family members on the path to healing 

 

Annual Backpack Project 

 Seven years ago, CARE House 

contacted Troy PD stating that 

children that they serve often 

arrive with no possessions,   

describing a need for backpacks 

containing personal care items 

 We gladly accepted this project;  

and it has become an annual 

effort that is enthusiastically  

supported by all Troy Police     

employees 

 We fill 24 backpacks with items 

such as shampoo, body wash, 

toothbrush, toothpaste, towel, 

washcloth, socks, playing cards, 

puzzle book, small snacks, and a 

stuffed animal 

 Backpacks are delivered to 

CARE House in Pontiac; they 

distribute them to children 

throughout the year as the need arises 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 20 

Golf  Outing 

Charity Golf Event  -  Giving Back to the Community 

 In August, the Troy Police Department hosted its annual charity golf outing at Sanctuary Lake Golf Club  

 Event included a round of golf, raffle prizes, and dinner 

 With over 80 golfers, 33 sponsors, and assistance from 25 volunteers, the Police Department was able to raise 

$13,488.12 

 Proceeds were given to the following organizations that are strongly committed to developing a brighter future 

for the City of Troy 

 Troy Police and Fire Benevolent Association 

 Troy Youth Assistance 

 Troy Community Coalition 

 We received overwhelming support from our community and extend our gratitude to all participants 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 21 

Police Administration 

Office Coordinator 

 Works directly for the Chief of Police and serves as an agent for the Chief in procuring information from other 

members of the administrative staff, Department, or other agencies 

 Transmits directives to Department personnel in the name of the Chief 

 Member of Department Budget Committee  

 Maintains all purchasing/payment files and processes all invoices for payment 

 Responsible for involved confidential clerical work and maintaining Department financial records and personnel 

files and records 

 Distributes assignments for clerical staff, periodically reviews workloads to insure uniformity, and modifies           

assignments as necessary 

 Trains and supervises the following clerical staff in computer software and various clerical job functions 

 Administration Secretary 

 Investigations Secretary 

 Operations Secretary 

 Training Secretary 

 Part-Time Office Assistant 

 

Clerical Staff 

 Majority of assignments are received from Command Staff 

 Responsible for involved confidential clerical work and maintaining Department records 

 Perform many functions previously assigned to uniformed personnel 

 Work with only general supervision using independent judgment and discretion 

 Process payroll data entry for Department 

 Coordinate alarm registration and invoicing 

 Attend and take minutes of meetings 

 Develop Department forms 

 Coordinate training classes and schedules for Department 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 22 

Professional Standards Section 

Overview 
 Lieutenant Thomas Gordon oversees our Professional Standards Section 
 
Hiring 
 In 2014, we hired nine Police Officers, two Police Service Aides, and one Records Clerk 

 We promoted two Sergeants and two Communications Supervisors 
 
Staff Inspections 

 Responsible for review of Department procedures, coordination of investigation of    

complaints against Department personnel and policy, and examination and review of   

operations 

 Processes allow for corrective action on an individual and organizational level, and 

serve to protect our integrity  

 Analysis of data serves to assess training needs, ensure the continuous development of policy and procedure, and 

ensure knowledge of and compliance with Department procedures 

 Internal Affairs Investigations 

 Arise from external complaints against the performance of individual employees and/or Department policy 

 Staff Inspections Investigations 

 Arise from internal complaints against the performance of individual employees and/or Department policy 

 Serve to document routine operations on an annual basis 

 Resistive Subject Investigations 

 Fleeing Vehicle Report Investigations 

 Supervisor Accident Reporting 

 Police Background Investigations 

 Grievance Tracking 

 Civil Law Suit Data 

 Department Personnel Files 

 

2014 Staff Inspections Statistics 

 Internal Affairs Investigations 

 17 Complaints (10 Exonerated, 3 Sustained, 4 Other) 

 Staff Inspections     

 31 Operations Reviews & 24 Investigations/Performance Reviews (3 Exonerated, 12 Sustained, 40 Other)              

 Fleeing Vehicles 

 14 Total (12 Proper, 2 Policy Violation) 

 Resistive Subjects 

 10 Total (10 Proper, 0 Policy Violation) 

 Accidents 

 30 Total (10 On-Duty Injury, 20 Vehicle/Property Damage, 9 At-Fault) 

 Lawsuits 

 0 

Lieutenant Thomas Gordon 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 23 

Training Section 

Overview 

 Troy PD Training Section is responsible for the development, planning, coordination, scheduling, and implementation 

of all Department training programs 

 Also maintains training records, the firing range, training facilities, and all equipment assigned to training 

 Staffed by one lieutenant, one sergeant, two officers, and one secretary 

 Troy PD hosts numerous groups at our state-of-the-art training facility 

 In return for hosting, we receive free seats in the training 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Philosophy 

 Well-trained police employees are capable of delivering high quality police service while providing for the safety of    

the public and themselves through their comprehensive knowledge and proper utilization of equipment, operating   

procedures, and policy 

 

2014 Statistics 

 Hosted 40 training courses at the Troy Fire and Police Training Center 

 Trained 634 total officers  

 Received 800+ hours of training 

 Benefited from $9,305.04 of FREE tuition 

 

 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 24 

Tactical Support Team 

Overview  

 Highly trained and extremely motivated special weapons and tactics unit within the Troy Police Department 

 Team consists of one lieutenant, two sergeants, and ten police officers who have completed Basic SWAT School 

 Many hold instructor certifications in various special operations disciplines; four of the team members are cross-

trained as tactical snipers 

 Maintain daily functions as patrol officers and carry all specialized equipment with them  

 Required to maintain a high level of physical fitness and must pass a demanding physical obstacle course quarterly 

 Participate in monthly firearms training, scenario-based training, and tactical planning 

 Provide in-house tactical training and create instructional programs 

 Respond to critical incidents  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 25 

Oakland County Tactical 

Training Consortium (OakTac)  

Overview  

 Established in 2009 to prepare Oakland County in the event a major incident required 

a mutual aid response 

 Applied for and obtained grants to purchase equipment (riot gear, crowd control    

barricades, towing vehicle, storage trailers) 

 May 2009: Small Squad Tactics training at Michigan State Fairgrounds 

 May 2012:  Large scale training exercise at CREST facility 

 May 2013:  Active Shooter Response instructor training  

 June 2013:  Active Shooter Response training at Jefferson Middle School, Pontiac 

 November 2013:  Mobile Field Force training at Center for Domestic Preparedness,                                             

Anniston, Alabama 

 May 2014:  First Responding Supervisors training 

 

 

 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 26 

Crime Data Analyst 

Overview  

 Crime Data Analyst position staffed by Benjamin Nelms 

 Previously employed by West Palm Beach, Florida PD as a 

GIS Mapping Specialist and Crime Analyst for seven years 

 

Goals 
 Recognize crime trends and patterns 

 Reallocate resources in a more efficient manner to subdue 
crime issues 

 Provide Operations Division with Crime Alerts  

 Coordinate with Investigative Services Section in attempt to  
link crime patterns with on-going investigations 

 Produce monthly reports detailing overtime spending, sick 
time usage, and budget account balances 

 Assist in annual budget preparation 

 Provide statistics for traffic crash scenes 

 Supply the public with crime statistics for neighborhoods and areas of the city 
 

 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 27 

Crime Statistics 

Calendar Year 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Group A Crimes* 3721 3958 3720 3639 3652 3509 3507 3433 3277 2939 

Group B Crimes** 2314 2011 1835 1402 1406 1304 1253 1392 1446 1386 

Total Group A & B 6035 5969 5555 5041 5058 4813 4760 4825 4723 4325 

Group A Change -3.1% 6.4% -6.0% -2.2% 0.4% -3.9% -0.1% -2.1% -4.5% -10.3% 

Group B Change -5.1% -13.1% -8.8% -23.6% 0.3% -7.3% -3.9% 11.1% 3.9% -4.1% 

Annual Change -3.9% -1.1% -6.9% -9.3% 0.3% -4.8% -1.1% 1.4% -2.1% -8.4% 

*    Group  A Crimes typically are the most serious and closely correspond to the categories the FBI uses to determine serious crime rates for a community. 

** Group B Crimes are those that are considered less serious or significant. 

Offense 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Murder 1 2 1 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 

Aggravated Assaults 39 50 42 59 43 33 33 32 29 27 

Simple Assaults or    

Intimidation 
589 600 584 534 669 683 590 519 546 485 

Robbery 19 27 20 15 14 9 14 14 7 10 

Sex Assault, Forcible  25 26 33 29 34 20 45 24 28 22 

Burglary 278 317 279 309 237 294 236 185 222 161 

Motor Vehicle Thefts 136 155 170 167 87 111 143 114 82 69 

Arson 5 7 4 6 3 2 14 13 2 1 

Larceny Thefts 1,595 1,567 1,494 1,432 1,604 1,362 1,437 1,427 1,290 1,149 

Narcotic Offenses 281 325 315 315 317 308 314 412 484 474 

OWI 463 450 553 451 442 435 400 474 477 479 

Liquor Law Violations 130 143 192 145 101 107 99 110 107 96 

 2013 2014 Percentage of Change 

Group A Crimes 2923 2558 -12.5% 

Group B Crimes 1165 1106 -  5.1% 

Total CFS 33,710 33,386 -  1.0% 

Ten Year Crime Trend 

Crime Statistics Reported to State and FBI 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 28 

Crime Statistics 

Calls for Service 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2007 2006 2005 

38,401 35,346 35,024 34,383 33,336 33,710 33,386 40,545 39,006 40,134 

Annual Calls for Service Percent Change 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2007 2006 2005 

-5.3% -8.0% -0.9% -0.5% -4.3% 1.1% -1.0% 3.9% -2.8% 3.4% 

Annual Crash Summary  

Overall Department Traffic Citation Summary 

Offense 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Hazardous 11,869 8,903 9,765 9,127 8,178 8,214 7,526 7,385 6,812 5,400 

Non-Hazardous 1,513 622 677 624 1,136 656 590 927 725 861 

License, Title,         

Registration 
3,865 2,965 2,416 2,378 2,279 2,232 2,155 2,473 2,500 2,704 

Parking 1,195 772 793 470 486 331 534 541 400 354 

Total Citations 18,442 13,262 13,651 12,599 12,079 11,433 10,805 11,326 10,437 9,319 

Offense 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Property Damage 2,494 2,704 2,534 2,192 2,279 2,523 2,322 2,662 2,662 2,873 

Personal Injury 551 615 581 477 316 375 371 414 414 479 

Fatal 4 5 7 3 5 1 6 3 3 4 

Private Property 1,130 1,032 1,012 948 800 767 682 758 760 779 

Total Crashes 4,179 4,356 4,134 3,620 3,400 3,666 3,381 3,837 3,839 4,135 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 29 

Emergency Management 

Definition 
 Managerial function charged with creating the framework within which                                                          

communities reduce vulnerability to threats/hazards and cope with disasters 
 
Goals 
 Reduce loss of life 

 Minimize property loss and environmental damage 

 Protect jurisdiction from all threats and hazards 
 
Overview 
 Emergency Management Specialist Kristin Dayag coordinates crisis management activities, provides disaster  

preparedness training, and prepares emergency plans and procedures for natural, technological, and human-
caused threats 

 Manages City of Troy Emergency Operations Plan; updated regularly as a living document 

 Identifies potential hazards and required resource capabilities, as well as establishes a framework for agency roles 
and responsibilities 

 Hazard Mitigation Plan adopted by Troy City Council on April 7, 2014; defined action policies to reduce long 
term risk and future losses 

 
2014 Projects 
 Established temporary warming centers at Troy Community Center, Woodside Bible Church, and Kensington 

Church during extreme cold weather to prevent frostbite and hypothermia 

 Provided relief to local residents after severe storm and flooding incident that was federally declared a major  
disaster by President Obama allowing FEMA to provide individual and household assistance 

 Partnered with all levels of government, special operations teams, and city departments to form preventive,    
protective, and responsive measures in connection with the 2014 Ebola epidemic in West Africa  

 

City of Troy 

Emergency Operations Plan 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 30 

Emergency Management 

Whole Community Approach 

 
Key Community Factors 

GEOGRAPHY PROPERTY INFRASTRUCTURE DEMOGRAPHICS 
RESPONSE           

ORGANIZATIONS 

 Major geographic     

features 

 Typical weather 

patterns 

 Numbers 

 Types 

 Ages 

 Building codes 

 Critical facilities 

 Potential         

secondary hazards  

 Utilities construction, 

layout, access 

 Communication     

system layout, features, 

backups 

 Road systems 

 Air and water support 

 Population, size, 

distribution,      

concentrations 

 Numbers of people 

in vulnerable zones 

 Special populations 

 Animal populations 

 Locations 

 Points of contact 

 Facilities 

 Services 

 Resources 

Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment 

NATURAL THREATS TECHNOLOGICAL THREATS HUMAN-CAUSED THREATS 

 Avalanche 

 Drought 

 Earthquake 

 Epidemic 

 Flood 

 Hurricane 

 Landslide 

 TORNADO 

 Tsunami 

 Volcanic eruption 

 Wildfire 

 WINTER STORM 

 Airplane crash 

 Dam failure 

 HAZMAT RELEASE 

 Power failure 

 Radiological release 

 Train derailment 

 Urban conflagration 

 Civil disturbance 

 School violence 

 TERRORIST ACT 

 Sabotage 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 31 

Emergency Management 

   



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 32 

Investigative/Administrative  

         Services Division 

Overview  

 Investigative/Administrative Services Division is commanded by Captain 

Keith Frye 

 Consists of all investigative and many support elements of the Department 

 Works closely with the City Attorney and the Oakland County Prosecutor’s 

Office 

 Works with numerous federal, state, county, and local law enforcement and 

public service agencies 

 Staffed by two Lieutenants, three Sergeants, 15 Troy Officers, three  Outside 

Agency Officers, ten Civilian Supervisors, 30 Non-Sworn Personnel, and two 

Part-Time Personnel 

 

Responsibilities 

 Investigate all crimes (adult and juvenile) 

 Dispatch all calls for service (police and fire) 

 Process and house all prisoners 

 Organize and maintain all police records 

 Inventory and catalog all property and evidence 

 Implement and maintain computer, security, and video systems 

 

Elements 

 Criminal Investigations 

 Special Investigations Unit 

 Criminal Intelligence Unit 

 Communications Section for Police & Fire 

 Lock-Up Section 

 Records Section 

 Property Section 

 Research & Technology Section 

Investigative Services personnel are represented 
in many collaborative efforts: 

 Major Case Assistance Team (MCAT) 

 Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) 

 Homeland Security-Border Enforcement 
Security Task Force (BEST) 

 Southeast Michigan Financial Crimes Task 
Force (SEMFCTF) 

 United States Secret Service Electronic 
Crimes Task Force 

 Oakland County Coordinating Council 
Against Domestic Violence (OCCADV) 

Captain Keith Frye 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 33 

Investigative Services Section 

Overview 
 Lieutenant Scott Salter oversees Criminal Investigations, Criminal Intelligence  Unit, 

and Special Investigations Unit 

 These units augment one another and assist in effective investigation, identification, 
surveillance, and apprehension of those committing criminal activity 

 
Criminal Investigations 
 Consists of one sergeant, eight investigators, and a secretary 

 Supervisors review reports for solvability factors; cases are then assigned to an          
investigator, closed, or referred  

 In 2014, 1,662 cases were assigned with 636 or 38% resulting in some form of        
prosecution and another 588  resolved by other means; collectively, 74% assigned      
for investigation were cleared in some effective manner 

 
Significant Criminal Investigations Cases in 2014 
      Investigation Ongoing in Clark Gas Station Homicide 

 In February 2014, 63 year old Clark Gas Station clerk was found fatally shot in the head 

 Intensive investigation continues utilizing the FBI Behavioral Unit, FBI Gang and Violent Crimes Task Force, 
Major Crimes Assistance Team, Michigan State Police, Oakland County Sheriff’s Office, Narcotics Enforcement 
Team, Detroit Police Department, and United States Secret Service 

      
      K-9 Track Leads Investigators to Arrest of Robbery Suspect  
 Armed robberies at Speedway Gas Station (Maple/Rochester) and Kelly’s Market (Rochester/Square Lake) 

 Troy K-9 tracked suspect to nearby residence; investigators secured search warrant; evidence recovered, arrests 
made, and confessions obtained; defendant pled guilty to Armed Robbery and was sentenced to 4-20 years 

 
      Countywide Home Invasion Suspect Apprehended & Warrant Request Submitted 

 Break-ins of ten homes in Troy as well as in Beverly Hills, Bloomfield Hills, Royal Oak, and Rochester Hills 

 DNA collected by our evidence technicians and confessions obtained by investigators 
 
      Caregiver Abuses Trust by Embezzling Funds from Vulnerable Adult 
 Investigation revealed $35,000 was embezzled by caregiver 

 Warrants obtained for two counts of Embezzlement and two counts of Abuse Against a Vulnerable Adult 
 
       Suspicious Missing Report Leads Investigators to Saving Woman’s Life 

 Female reported missing under suspicious circumstances 

 Investigators found her in snowy field disoriented and hypothermic after exposure to sub-zero temperatures 
 
       Realtors Assist Investigators in Open House Larcenies 

 Many larcenies committed during realtor open houses; homeowners’ property and realtors’ purses stolen 

 Well-coordinated investigation conducted, resulting in the arrest and current  prosecution of the defendants 
 
 

Click here to view letter of appreciation 

Lieutenant Scott Salter 

http://troymi.gov/portals/0/files/police/annualreport/Investigations-LINK-Letter%20of%20Thanks%20from%20Realtor.pdf


 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 34 

Investigative Services Section 

Criminal Intelligence Unit (CIU) 
 Acts as a clearing house for information that comes to the Department 

through a variety of means, including police reports, pawn transactions, 
intelligence reports generated by other investigators in the metro Detroit 
area, and the Department’s dedicated tip line 

 In 2014, CIU received 176 tips covering misdemeanor larceny to      
homicide 

 Information is evaluated and disseminated to appropriate work group 
for follow up and investigation 

 Hosts monthly meeting for investigators and civilian security liaisons   
for information sharing and crime trend identification; initiates civil  
forfeiture cases, primarily those related to felony narcotics and identity 
theft 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Michigan Department of Corrections 
 Partnered with MDOC to provide Parole Agent Laura Giovannangeli and Probation Agent Amanda Flint with 

satellite offices 

 Information sharing has increased, partnerships have been enhanced, and arrests have been made 

 Agents Giovannangeli and Flint assist investigators in identifying suspects, act as liaisons with other agents, and 
provide avenues for investigators to locate and interview suspects  

Significant Criminal Intelligence Unit Case in 2014 
On April 7, 2014, a locker larceny occurred at the LA Fitness on   
Maple Road and credit cards were then used at a camera store in  
Pontiac.  A surveillance camera image of the suspect was obtained and 
distributed through the intelligence group network.  West Bloomfield 
and Bloomfield Township investigators recognized the suspect as  
being the someone responsible for similar crimes in their cities.  
Working with those detectives, it was learned that the suspect was a 
Florida resident in possession of memberships under false names at 
four different nationwide fitness clubs.  The suspect had been       
traveling the country for three years, breaking into lockers, stealing 
credit cards, and fraudulently purchasing jewelry and electronics, with 
an identified fraud loss of $480,000.  All of the cases were combined 
and prosecuted federally in the Northern District of California, and 
the suspect was sentenced to 58 to 64 months in prison. 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.dfwtriclub.com%2Fla-fitness-premier-membership&ei=POjkVLTYF5aBygS78oGgAQ&bvm=bv.85970519,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNFRLexWfrPjiaL4bYQa_kg7xHVekA


 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 35 

Investigative Services Section 

Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
 Multi-jurisdictional team staffed by Troy PD, Auburn Hills PD,   

Birmingham PD, and Bloomfield Township PD 

 Provides covert, alternative approach to criminal investigation and 
apprehension 

 Primary targets are professional criminals, habitual offenders, and 
those involved in narcotics trafficking 

 Ability to capture individuals otherwise avoiding apprehension    
utilizing undercover officers, covert surveillance techniques, and 
specialized surveillance equipment, utilized to provide intelligence 
information on suspects of criminal involvement and/or locations believed to be the sites of criminal activity, 
and to enforce violations for narcotics trafficking as well as vice-related crimes 

 
Significant Special Investigations Unit Cases in 2014 
 In 2014, SIU was involved in arrest of 70 suspects for a variety of crimes including homicides, home invasions, 

larcenies from automobiles, larcenies in buildings, felony warrants, narcotics, and retail frauds 

 Not only worked with Troy, Auburn Hills, and Bloomfield Township Investigations Sections throughout the 
year, but with other agencies/task forces including MCAT, SONIC, FBI VCTF, HSI, and DEA 

 Identified and dismantled five marijuana grow operations (four in Troy and one in Mt. Clemens) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      Troy Complaint No. 14-7110 - Ferndale 

 Oakland County home invasion suspect was developed and SIU initiated surveillance in early 2014 

 Suspect observed committing home invasion in Ferndale; arrested without incident, clearing multiple cases 
 

      Troy Complaint No. 14-7909 - Commerce Township 

 Suspect in spree of over 65 home invasions using eyewitnesses, police reports, and law enforcement databases 

 Suspect was surveyed committing a home invasion in Commerce Township for which he was convicted 
 

      Troy Complaint No. 14-13165 - MCAT (Major Case Assistance Team) 
 Located and arrested four subjects wanted for attempted murder by Bloomfield Hills PD   
  

      Troy Complaint No. 14-13797 - Sterling Heights 

 Suspects targeted residences while the owners were attending weddings 

 SIU observed suspects; they were charged and convicted on numerous cases 
 

      Troy Complaint No. 14-16001 - Northville  
 Suspect in a rash of home invasions occurring while family members were at funerals for their loved ones 

 Surveillance conducted and arrest made, clearing over twenty cases in multiple counties 

SUSPECT CRIME/CITY ARRESTED IN COMPLAINT NO. 

Weiner, Michael Home Invasion Arrest (Ferndale) Troy #14-7110 

Johnson, Anthony Home Invasion Arrest (Commerce Township) Troy #14-7909 

Miller, Devon (+4) Attempt Murder-MCAT (Bloomfield Hills) Troy #14-13165 

Jarbo, Taymar (+3) Wedding Home Invasions (Sterling Heights) Troy #14-13797 

Scott, Antoine Funeral Home Invasion (Northville) Troy #14-16001 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 36 

Investigative Services Section 

Task Forces 
 Troy PD has joined with various federal, state, and local law enforcement agencies in an effort to curtail     

criminal activity directly impacting the Troy business and residential community 

 Task forces provide personnel, resources, and expertise to enhance law enforcement efforts for all contributing   
police departments 

 Our task forces have proven to be remarkably successful in reducing criminal activity in and around the City of 
Troy 

 
 
      Drug Enforcement Administration Task Force (DEA) 
 Troy Officer is assigned to the Drug Enforcement Administration Task Force 

(DEA) as  part of our overall  commitment to the enforcement of federal, 
state, and local narcotics laws 

 We recognize the importance of well-coordinated efforts between federal, 
state, and local law enforcement because of the wide-ranging organizations 
that traffic in illegal narcotics 

 Troy PD is committed to reducing the use of narcotics and the reduction of 
crime in the community through education and enforcement. 

 Forfeiture funds seized through these enforcement efforts are used to offset 
Department expenses 

 
 
 

        
 

 

 

       Homeland Security/Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
      Border Enforcement Security Task Force (HSI/ICE/BEST) 
 The Immigration and Customs Enforcement-Border Enforcement Security     

Task Force (HSI/ICE-B.E.S.T.) is an international federal, state, and local 
task force that was created as a comprehensive approach to identifying,     
disrupting, and dismantling criminal organizations posing significant threats  
to border security 

 Troy PD had identified international criminal organizations involved in     
narcotics trafficking and human smuggling that had established footholds in 
Troy and surrounding communities through the exploitation of weaknesses   
at the international borders 

 Sharing of information and resources has resulted in the successful            
dismantling of these organizations 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fen.wikipedia.org%2Fwiki%2FDrug_Enforcement_Administration&ei=N03iVNCQB8exaZKXgbgO&bvm=bv.85970519,d.cWc&psig=AFQjCNG4yrv3GeIYUtI_BqZ30BwBM


 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 37 

Investigative Services Section 

Southeast Michigan Financial Crimes Task Force (SEMFCTF) 
 In 2013, Troy PD assigned an investigator to Southeast Michigan Financial Crimes Task Force (SEMFCTF) 

 Staff from the United States Secret Service (USSS), Homeland Security Investigations, U. S. Postal Inspector, 
Internal Revenue Service, Novi PD, West Bloomfield PD, Royal Oak PD, Southfield PD, and Troy PD    
comprise this task force 

 Objective is to connect individual financial crimes with larger cases involving organized criminal groups  

 SEMFCTF investigates various types of organized financial crimes to include identity theft, access device 
fraud (credit card fraud), and check fraud 

 Majority of cases is generated by individual victims filing reports, local arrests, and information provided by 
private partnerships such as bank investigators 

 Networking and intelligence sharing increases investigators’ ability to identify and apprehend criminal           
enterprises involved in financial crimes 

 Equipment, training, and overtime costs are reimbursed by the USSS for participating in the task force 

 Asset forfeiture is shared by local agencies 

 Troy has a large shopping district which is exposed to organized fraud groups 
 
Examples of Troy Cases Investigated by SEMFCTF 
       Fraud Group Identified Out of New York City 

 Investigators identified a credit fraud ring based out of New 
York City 

 Suspect would distract the shoppers while another suspect    
pickpocketed the victim 

 Stolen credit cards would then be used to buy electronics and gift 
cards, which were shipped back to their base in New York City 

 This identified criminal enterprise was hitting retail locations  
nationwide 

 The case is currently being prosecuted federally with indictments 
pending. 

 
      Troy Resident Reported Credit Card Fraud at Somerset Collection 

 A Troy investigator assigned to SEMFCTF conducted an investigation of an unauthorized credit card        
purchase at Somerset Collection 

 Investigation led to the execution of search warrants and property recovered, including personal information 
from over 500 future victims 

 
       Morgue Assistant for Funeral Home Commits Fraud of Deceased Troy Resident 
 A widow discovered suspicious bank activity shortly after the passing of her husband 

 Bank representative contacted the Troy investigator assigned to SEMFCTF. 

 Further investigation revealed a funeral home morgue assistant had stolen the deceased’s personal information 
from his body while the corpse was being prepared for burial 

 Suspect fraudulently withdrew approximately $10,000 from the deceased’s checking account 

 Suspect was prosecuted federally, pled guilty in Federal Court to Bank Fraud, and was sentenced to one year 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 38 

Investigative Services Section 

Major Case Assistance Team (MCAT) 
 A regionalized partnership of experienced investigators from Auburn Hills PD, Birmingham PD, Bloomfield Hills 

DPS, Bloomfield Township PD, Clawson PD, Oakland County Sheriff’s Office (Rochester Hills), and Troy PD 

 Committed to resolving complex cases by providing member agencies involved in major criminal investigations 
with additional trained personnel and equipment 

 Troy PD has two investigators that respond to MCAT callouts as needed 
 
Significant MCAT Cases in 2014 
      Troy - Clark Gas Station Homicide 

 As stated earlier, this is an ongoing investigation  

 Over 125 tips have been received and investigated; investigators continue to actively pursue leads 

 Interviews have been conducted on employees, family members, and friends 
 
      Bloomfield Hills - Attempt Homicide/Home Invasion 

 Masked suspects targeted the resident, knocked on the door, and announced themselves as police officers 

 Homeowner was suspicious, refused to open the door, and was struck with gunfire multiple times 

 Intense investigation ensued and arrests were made within four days 

 Defendants charged with multiple crimes including Attempted Murder, Armed Robbery, and related felonies 

 Three of the four defendants have pled guilty with the fourth defendant still in the adjudication process 
 
      Bloomfield Township - Homicide 

 Handyman killed the homeowner, caused additional trauma to the victim, and tried to burn the condominium 

 A tireless investigation led to execution of search warrants and the arrest of the defendant within three days 

 Defendant confessed and warrants were obtained for Open Murder, Arson, Larceny of Firearm, and Possession of 
a Firearm during the commission of a felony 

 
      United States Secret Service - Electronic Crimes Task Force 

 Two Troy investigators have been trained as forensic computer crimes experts by the United 
States Secret Service at the National Computer Forensic Institute in Hoover, Alabama (USSS 
absorbed all training expenses; provided costly forensic computers, software, and equipment) 

 Trained on multiple media devices (cellular phones, computers, iPads, tablets, memory devices) 

 Investigators possess expertise to analyze and investigate crimes associated with child          
pornography, use of the internet by child sexual predators, and fraud-related crimes  

 Conducted forensic analysis on 56 criminal cases in 2014 
 
      Oakland County Coordinating Council Against Domestic Violence (OCCCADV) 
 Collaborative group comprised of judges, prosecutors, law enforcement, community 

groups, and other disciplines to address the problem of domestic violence in Oakland 
County 

 Focus is community outreach, education, and training to assist in understanding the 
dynamics and seriousness of this crime 

 Resources provided to victims of domestic violence 
 
 
 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 39 

Investigative Services Section 

Juvenile Crimes 
 In 2014, Criminal Investigations personnel were assigned to investigate 168 cases involving juvenile victims    

or offenders 

 69 of those cases (or 41%) resulted in some form of prosecution 

 65 of those cases were resolved by other means 

 Nine cases were diverted to alternative programs 

 Collectively, 84.5% of all juvenile cases assigned for investigation were cleared in some effective manner 

 22 cases remain under investigation and 11 were inactivated due to lack of evidence or viable leads 
 
Significant Juvenile Case in 2014 
       Neighbor Sexually Assaults 10 Year Old During a House Party 

 A 53 year old sexually assaulted a 10 year old victim while she was lying in bed 

 Investigation resulted in admission and criminal charges were authorized by Oakland County Prosecutors   
Office 

 Defendant pled guilty to multiple counts of Criminal Sexual Conduct 2nd degree; sentenced to 5-15 years 
 

 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 40 

Administrative Services Section 

Overview 
 Lieutenant Christopher Stout oversees the Administrative Services Section which      

includes Records, Communications, Lock-Up, Property, and Research and Technology 

 He is also a member of the Budget Team as well as researching and submitting grant 
applications for the Department  

 
Grants in 2014 

 Throughout 2014, the Troy Police Department applied for and was awarded a number 

of different grants that were provided at the state and federal level 

 Received $28,108 from the Traffic Improvement Association of Michigan through the 

Office of Highway Safety to enforce “ DRIVE SOBER OR GET PULLED OVER” 

and “CLICK IT OR TICKET” campaigns 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Received $3,300 from the United States Department of Justice, Office of Justice                

Programs to assist in purchasing of bulletproof vests 

 

 Received $29,646 from the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority to assist 

in the purchase of several important items for the Police Department including new Tasers,                                  

a LiveScan fingerprint machine for the Records Section, stop stick tire deflation devices,                                   

and a new police K-9 

Lieutenant Christopher Stout 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bulletsafe.com%2Fbullet-proof-vest-reverse-quarter-view.html&ei=A_DIVOvFA4WryQTk6oCACQ&bvm=bv.84607526,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNHD97SMQ762GF2E


 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 41 

Records Section 

Overview 

 Staffed by one Records Supervisor and four Records Clerks 

 Assists the public Monday through Friday at the public counter and on the telephone 

 Responsible for maintaining electronic and paper records that are sent to the State of Michigan for statistical 

purposes. 

 Daily duties include:  registering firearms, issuing pistol purchase permits to Troy residents, processing       

Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) requests, LIVESCAN fingerprinting, and issuing dog licenses 

 Provide certified reports, clearance letters, and copies of incident reports  

 

Statistics 

  

 

 

ELECTRONIC 

FINGERPRINTS 

HARD COPY 

FINGERPRINTS 

DOG               

LICENSES 

FOIA               

REQUESTS 

GUNS            

REGISTERED 

COMPLAINT 

NUMBERS  

GENERATED 

YEAR 

639 392 581 521 2,188 41,049 2013 

2014 461 447 2,494 739 1,761 40,142 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 42 

Communications Section 

Overview 
 Staffed 24 hours a day, 365 days a year 

 Comprised of 20 Department employees (one Sergeant, eight Communications Supervisors, and 11 Police Service Aides) 

 Communications Supervisors also responsible for supervising 12 Police Service Aides assigned to Lock-Up Section 

 Communications and Lock Up Sections are broken down into two platoons, four squads each 

 Responsible for receiving “911” and “Non-Emergency” calls for service for the Troy and Clawson Police & Fire, as well 
as requests for Emergency Medical Services  

 Receive an average of 28 calls per hour between 11:00 a.m.-6:00 p.m.; approximately 444 calls in a 24 hour period 

 Utilize the latest Computer Aided Dispatching “CAD” software program which is also equipped with an Automatic     
Vehicle Locator “AVL” to determine the location of the nearest police unit in relation to the call for service 

 Purchased EFD (Emergency Fire Dispatch) protocol dispatching system to be implemented in 2015 which will positively 
impact the City of Troy ISO rating and NFPA Compliance Standards 

 Monitor all external and internal Police CCTV security cameras along with other city facilities such as the New Transit 
Center, Recreation Center, Training Center, and DPW 

Call Statistics  

 

   

Reported Incidents Created in CAD/Dispatched 

 

YEAR 911 CALLS NON- OUTBOUND TOTAL       AVERAGE      

2013 41,019 84,357 44,386 169,762 19.3 

2014 41,253 80,134 42,297 164,576 18.8 

YEAR TROY             TROY             TOTAL CLAWSON           CLAWSON     TOTAL 

2013 41,019 3,275 44,324 5,261 109 5,370 

2014 40,142 3,600 43,742 5,006 174 5,180 

Click here to listen to a 911 call regarding a downed aircraft 

Click here to listen to a 911 call of a child reporting a health issue with his mother 

http://troymi.gov/portals/0/files/police/annualreport/Clip_4.wav
http://troymi.gov/portals/0/files/police/annualreport/Clip_3.wav


 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 43 

Lock-Up Section 

Overview 

 Lock-Up Section is staffed 365 days a year/24 hours a day, 

with a minimum staffing level of two employees 

 Twelve Police Service Aides staff the Lock-Up facility and 

handle daily operations and tasks; they are directly supervised 

by Communications Supervisors 

 Lock-Up Sergeant is responsible for administration of     

Lock-Up in addition to the Communications Section 

 Mandatory holding facility for all arrests, from mundane  

shoplifters to armed robbers, drug addicts, assault suspects, 

and homicide suspects 

 Process and hold prisoners for Troy PD and Clawson PD;   

on occasion will hold prisoners for Federal and State Agencies 

such as Michigan State Police, ICE, Border Patrol, DEA, and 

FBI 

 Lock-Up facility is able to lodge approximately 30 prisoners at 

one time 

 Authorized to hold or detain individuals for up to 72 hours 

before they must be arraigned, released on bond, or released 

pending issuance of a warrant 

Lock-Up Statistics - Troy Arrests 

YEAR 
ADULT      

MALES 

ADULT          

FEMALES 

JUVENILE 

MALES 

JUVENILE    

FEMALES 

TOTAL          

ARRESTS 

2013 1,973 878 24 11 2,886 

2014 1,881 865 21 52 2,773 

Lock-Up Statistics - Clawson Arrests 

YEAR 
ADULT      

MALES 

ADULT          

FEMALES 

JUVENILE 

MALES 

JUVENILE    

FEMALES 

TOTAL          

ARRESTS 

2013 381 169 N/A N/A 550 

2014 308 123 N/A N/A 431 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 44 

Property Section 

Overview 

 Staffed by one full-time Police Service Aide 

 Intake, storage, and release or disposal of property including 

 Evidence 

 Seized property 

 Lost/recovered items 

 Prisoner property 

 Document the chain of custody of all property 

 Catalog all incoming property 

 Dispose of items from closed cases 

 Destroy drugs from closed cases and medications from 

“Operation Medicine Drop” 

 Issue and track all department-issued equipment 

 

2014 Statistics 

 Approximately 500 items received into the property room 

 Approximately 36,600 items currently stored and inventoried  

       on an annual basis 

 Revenue deposited into City General Fund from items sold  

       on PropertyRoom.com 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 45 

Research and Technology 

Overview 

 Section is led by Research and Technology Administrator       

Ryan Wolf 

 Mission is to provide Public Safety Class IT Services with 24/7 

on-call support, 15 minute on-site response for critical systems, 

and 99.9% uptime of mission critical and life safety systems 

 Responsible for creating and maintaining user accounts and     

employee access to folders and other network resources based    

on the job assignment, the administration of the City of Troy       

security system which includes creating ID cards, assigning      

access rights, insuring cameras and card readers are operational, 

coordinating with the City IT Department for access to city     

resources, troubleshooting PC and application software, general help desk duties, and programming and      

administration of the portable and mobile radios 

 Assists in the preparation of the Police Department Budget and Department project planning 

 

Systems 

 Computer Aided Dispatch (county based) 

 Records Management (county based) 

 Mugshot (county based) 

 Booking Automated Digital Livescan Fingerprint (county 

based)  

 OakWin Digital Radio System and Dispatch Radio Consoles 

(county based) 

 Automated Pistol Registration System (APRS) 

 Applicant Automated Digital Fingerprint Livescan 

 City-wide Card Access System 

 City-wide IP Camera System 

 State CORE LEIN Application and county based Web LEIN 

 Local PC Network 

 NetMotion City-wide VPN 

 Microsoft SQL Server 

 In-Car Camera System 

 Adore -Field Training Evaluation Software 

 Help Desk System 

 Custom built systems including Shift Reports, Vehicle Write-up 

and Status Board, and the Video Preservation Request System 

 

 
Police Vehicle Status Board in Roll Call Room 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 46 

Research and Technology 

Statistics 

 Total Help Desk Tickets: 2,322 

 Video Requests: 1,071 

 Vehicle Write-ups: 148 

 General IT Tickets: 1,103 

 Standard PCs: 120 

 MDCs: 43 

 Digital In-Car Camera Systems: 45 

 Servers: 17 

 Mobile Radios: 89 

 Portable Radios: 157 

 Cameras: 247 

 Doors with Access Control: 142 

 

Large Projects 

 Installed a dedicated IP Surveillance Network throughout City Buildings 

 Added 18 cameras and six doors to the Access Control System at the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Center 

 Installed 25 cameras and added five doors to the Access Control System in City Hall 

 Added 19 Cameras in the Police Property room 

 Migrated 16 cameras at the Police and Fire Training Center to the City-Wide IP System 

 Assisted in preparation of the 2014/15 Fiscal Year Budget 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 47 

Operations Division 

Overview  

 Operations Division is commanded by Captain Robert Redmond 

 Functional 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, and 365 days a year 

 Number one goal is to ensure public safety by using a data driven approach 

to crime trends, aggressively enforcing impaired driving violations, and    

training officers to perform specialized assignments 

 Primary function is responding to calls for service,  detecting and preventing 

crime, and conducting initial incident and crime scene investigations 

 Tasked with enforcing state and federal laws, city ordinances, and traffic laws 

 Most visible part of the Police Department and typically have the most     

contact with the general public 

 Enjoy a working relationship with the residents and businesses to facilitate 

problem solving and increase the quality of life in the City of Troy 

 

Responsibilities 

 Perform motorized and foot patrols by uniformed and plain clothes officers; we strive to deter, detect, and    

suppress crime trends by using overt and covert patrols as well as saturation patrols for problem areas 

 Respond to a broad range of emergency situations which include in-progress crimes, traffic crashes, medical 

emergencies, and other public safety concerns 

 Train for and be prepared to respond to tactical situations such as active shooter, barricaded gunman, and acts  

of terrorism 

 Conduct traffic enforcement, investigate traffic crashes and fatalities, and respond to and remedy neighborhood 

specific traffic complaints 

 Provide education to citizens, schools, and businesses in a crime prevention effort, and educate the City’s youth 

on the dangers of drug and alcohol use and the importance of making wise life choices 

 

Elements 

 Three Patrol Shifts (days, afternoon, midnights) 

 Patrol Secretary; payroll data entry 

 Community Services Section 

 Directed Patrol Unit 

 Front Desk Attendants  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following units are integrated into the patrol shifts 

 Evidence Technician Unit 

 K-9 Unit 

 Police Honor Guard 

 Field Training Officers 

 Traffic Safety Specialists/Motor Carrier Officers 

 South Oakland County Crash Investigation Team 

Captain Robert Redmond 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 48 

Operations Division 

Day Shift   

 Commanded by Lieutenant Frank Nastasi and staffed with three sergeants, 15 officers, 

and one Police Service Aide; additional duties of officers include K-9, Evidence      

Technician, Honor Guard, Tactical Support Team, Field Training, Traffic Safety       

Specialist, and Oakland Hazardous Materials Response Team 

 On duty from 7:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m. when the City’s population, traffic volume,     

and the number of police-related calls for service are consistently at or near their peak 

 Shift goal is to increase public safety by reducing the number of crimes and crash      

incidents 

 Shift objective is to use available data and resources to direct shift action in achieving 

goals 

 Committed to working in partnership with the business community, Troy’s school 

districts, and homeowner’s associations; also working with local clubs, groups and 

affiliations to deter and reduce crime, reduce traffic  congestion, and increase the quality of life for those who 

live, work, and play in Troy 

 

Philosophy 

 Utilize crime-tracking and crime-mapping technologies to identify current crime trends and problem areas that 

affect the community 

 Incorporate use of saturation patrols and covert patrols to aggressively address crime and crash issues 

 Identify high crash areas and utilize aggressive traffic enforcement to reduce these numbers 

 Active community patrol during unassigned time to detect suspicious persons, suspicious vehicles, conduct field 

investigations, and make traffic stops and arrests 

 Utilize a community policing/problem solving approach to emphasize quality service while responding to the   

concerns of citizens and businesses  

 

2014 Statistics     

 Initiated and/or responded to over 27%, or 10,843 of the 40,554 total calls for service 2014 

 Many of these calls for service involved lengthy and complicated investigations and include:   

 crimes in progress and reports 

 traffic offenses and crashes 

 ordinance violations 

 intrusion and hold-up alarms 

 alcohol and drug related offenses 

 medical emergencies 

 Effected 19 of the 479 operating while impaired arrests (4%) 

 Handled 419 of the 4,074  traffic crash incidents (10.3%) 

Lieutenant Frank Nastasi 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 49 

Operations Division 

Afternoon Shift   

 Commanded by Lieutenant Russel Harden and staffed with two sergeants, 13 officers, 

and one Police Service Aide; additional duties of officers include K-9, Evidence         

Technician, Honor Guard, Tactical Support Team, Field Training, and Traffic Safety   

Specialist 

 On duty from 2:00 p.m. until 12:00 a.m.; organized to cover high volume of calls for ser-

vice that occur between these times 

 Studies indicate city’s population swells to over 170,000, increasing the amount of       

vehicular traffic 

 Overall shift goal is to increase public safety by reducing the number of crime and crash 

incidents 

 Objective is to use available data and resources to direct shift actions in achieving goals 

 Committed to providing quality service to members of the community; officers performing their duties in a     

thorough manner, and going the extra step in pursuit of achieving the goal 

 

Philosophy 

 Identify crime trends and problem areas affecting the community as well as the surrounding area, and develop 

strategies to mitigate these concerns 

 Incorporate the use of saturation patrols and covert patrols to aggressively address crime and crash issues 

 Identify high crash intersections/areas and use aggressive traffic enforcement and OWI arrests in an effort to    

reduce these numbers 

 Active patrol during unassigned time to detect suspicious persons, suspicious vehicles, conduct field investigations, 

and make traffic stops and arrests 

 Utilize a community policing/problem solving approach to emphasize quality service while responding to the   

concerns of citizens and businesses  

 

2014 Statistics     

 Initiated and/or responded to over 26%, or 10,689 of the 40,554 total calls for service 2014 

 Many of these calls for service involved lengthy and complicated investigations and include:   

 crimes in progress and reports 

 traffic offenses and crashes 

 ordinance violations 

 alarms 

 alcohol and drug related offenses 

 medical emergencies 

 Effected 198 of the 479 operating while impaired 

arrests (41%) 

 Handled 622 of the 4,074  traffic crash incidents 

(15.3%) 

 

 

Lieutenant Russel Harden 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 50 

Operations Division 

Midnight Shift  

 Commanded by Lieutenant Russel Harden and staffed with three sergeants and 13 officers; additional duties of 

officers include K-9, Evidence Technician, Honor Guard, Tactical Support Team, and Field Training 

 On duty from 9:30 p.m. until 7:30 a.m. 

 Majority of industrial and commercial business are closed during this shift and the population wanes to the   

residential numbers of just under 83,000 

 Alcohol and domestic-related calls for service tend to be higher during this shift 

 As the traffic and calls to dispatch diminish, officers spend unassigned patrol time looking for suspicious     

activities, impaired drivers, and checking buildings and automobiles  

 Overall shift goal is to increase public safety, protect life and property, and reduce crime 

 Shift objective is to subscribe to a proactive and preventative brand of community policing while responding to 

the threats created by criminals and impaired drivers 

 Committed to the protection of life and property utilizing proactive measures throughout the night-time hours 

to ensure our homes, residents, and businesses are safe and secure 

 

Philosophy 

 Incorporate vigorous saturation patrols  

in known crime hot-spots to deter crime 

 Aggressively enforce OWI laws to      

protect lives and property 

 Active patrol during unassigned time to 

detect suspicious persons and vehicles 

that coincide with criminal behavior  

 Aggressive patrol of city parks,        

neighborhoods, hotels, and business  

areas to prevent and detect crimes such 

as underage drinking, car thefts, larcenies, 

burglaries, and drug-related activities 

 Search for and report potential crime 

hazards such as open garage doors and unsecured items visible in vehicles 

 

2014 Statistics     

 Initiated and/or responded to close to 19%, or 7,602 of the 40,554 total calls for service 2014 

 Effected 184 of the 479 operating while impaired arrests (38%) 

 Handled 275 of the 4,074  traffic crash incidents (7%) 

 

 

 

 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 51 

Evidence Technicians 

Overview 

 Responsible for the identification, collection, documentation, processing, preservation, and presentation of physical 

evidence found at crime scenes 

 Utilize their training, skills, and experience to identify and collect a wide variety of evidence to include fingerprints, 

shoeprints, tire treads, DNA samples, trace evidence, and tool mark impressions 

 Photograph all crimes scenes and evidence 

2014 Statistics 

 Total incidents processed:   376  

 Assault:       64 

 Home Invasion:      37 

 Breaking & Entering:     23 

 Robbery:        9 

 Suicide:        5 

 Homicide:                    1 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 52 

Operations Division 

K-9 Unit 

 Comprised of three highly trained, nationally certified teams, each consisting of one Officer and one K-9 

 Troy PD utilizes German Shepherds imported from Europe, bred specifically for police duties 

 Each K-9 obtains national certifications in narcotics and tracking early in their careers 

 Each team has a specially equipped patrol vehicle and is assigned to patrol duties along with specialized            

K-9 duties 

 

2014 Statistics 

 Responded to 188 requests for assistance with narcotics detection, building searches, and criminal tracking  

 Resulted in numerous arrests that would not have been possible without the unique abilities of the K-9 teams 

 Completed over 1,000 cumulative hours of training 

 Provided many demonstrations for community groups and schools 

 

Team Members 

 Officer Steve Brazel and K-9 Tiko 

 Officer Adam Sinutko and K-9 Kilo 

 Officer Mindy Weingart and K-9 Eli 

 Officer Russ Barrows completed nearly 20 years of service and K-9 Bolo completed nine years of service and 

retired from the unit in 2014 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 53 

Operations Division 

Police Honor Guard 

 The Troy Police Department’s Honor Guard was formed to  perform 

official remembrance to law enforcement professionals who have 

passed in the line of duty 

 The Honor Guard is also utilized for certain events that require      

dignified display and presentation of our nation’s flag 

 Consists of two sergeants and nine police officers (including one     

bugler) 

 Highly trained in the aspects of drill and ceremony, flag presentations, 

and funeral details 

 Equipped with dress uniforms to give a highly polished appearance   

for representing Troy PD in an utmost professional manner 

 Trains six times a year to maintain their military bearing and skills in 

drill and ceremony 

 Members founded a 501c3 charity to give financial support to the families of Law Enforcement Professionals in 

the state of Michigan who have passed in the line of duty 

 

2014 Statistics 

 Troy PD Honor Guard performed the following duties 

 Macomb Police Academy graduation flag detail (spring session) 

 National Police Memorial ceremony flag raising and 21 gun salute 

 Troy/Birmingham Transit Center grand opening flag raising ceremony 

 Macomb Police Academy graduation flag detail (fall session) 

 Veterans Day memorial ceremony flag detail 

 Troy Police Chaplain Paul Stover funeral detail 

 Ingham County Deputy Grant Whitaker funeral detail  

 

 

 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 54 

Operations Division 

Field Training Officer Program 

 Lieutenant Frank Nastasi oversees our Field Training Officer program 

 Two Sergeants manage the day-to-day operations 

 15 Police Officers are responsible for training and evaluation 

 At a minimum, each Field Training Officer has received expert training in the San Jose Model of Field Training 

and Evaluation 

 Some have received advanced training, concentrating on motivational techniques and problem solving 

 

Overview  

 Program was reevaluated in 2012 with anticipation of multiple new hires 

 San Jose Police Department “Model of Field Training and Evaluation” was adopted 

 This program is recognized by the International Association of Chiefs of Police was the most valid, consistent, 
reliable, and standardized field training program 

 
Elements 

 Consists of 14 weeks of intense training for each new officer 

 Three four-week “Steps” with three different Field Training Officers, each step being more challenging than 
the previous 

 Workload and responsibility increase and knowledge is gained 

 Final stage is two-week “Shadow Phase” where the teaching and training stops and the officer is required to 
perform and function as a solo Police Officer 

 The Field Training Officer’s role in the Shadow Phase is to evaluate the new officer’s ability to act and react on 
his/her own 

 Once released to solo patrol, the new officer is employed on a probationary status for the remainder of the first 
year of employment where performance is constantly evaluated and documented by the patrol shift sergeant 

 
Statistics 

 Since March 2013, the FTO Unit has trained 15 new officers, nine of which began and completed their training 
during 2014 

 Currently there are four officers in the program 

 Four additional officers are attending the Macomb Police Academy; upon graduation in May 2015, they will 
enter the Field Training program 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 55 

Operations Division 

Community Services Section Responsibilities 

 Community Problem Solving 

 Crime Prevention and Education 

 Special Community Events Planning and Staffing 

 Schools and School Resource Officer (SRO) 

 Media Crime Sheets & Citizen’s Crime Alerts 

 Residential & Business Alarm Management 

 Media Interviews & Conferences 

 Liaison with Retail Community 

 Somerset Collection Full-Time Retail Liaison 

 Department Web Page 

 Social Media 

 Election Detail Planning and Patrols 

 Summer Children’s Programs 

 Chaplain Program 

 Citizens on Patrol Program 

 Adult School Crossing Guards 

 

Public Information Officer 

 Operations Division Captain and Community Services 

Section Sergeant 

 Interact with media and public on a regular basis 

 Distribute Media Crime Sheet three times weekly to summarize crimes and other police-related incidents     

occurring in Troy, including arrest summaries, case updates, and special events 

 Issue Press Releases in connection with significant events, incidents, or other information which has a potential 

to generate media interest or may have an impact on the community 

 

School Resource Officer 

 Routinely patrols and provides police presence at 23 schools 

 Assists daycare/private schools with specific needs 

 Guest speaker 

 Assists with counseling 

 Acts as liaison between schools and law enforcement 

 Observes and evaluates lockdown drills 

 

Somerset Collection Retail Liaison 

 Uses a proactive problem solving approach 

 Provides foot patrol and creates a safe shopping atmosphere 

 Utilized as back-up for retail fraud/embezzlement arrests and other incidents 

 Organizes training specific to a merchant’s needs  

 

2014 Statistics 

 Conducted 325 programs 

 Programs attended by 27,204  individuals  

 5,725 registered security alarms 

 $234,050 generated from alarm program 

 3,205 residents & businesses reached via e-mail 

crime alert 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 56 

Operations Division 

Community Services Section Annual Events Summary 

 March of  Dimes Walk America 

 Troy Community Coalition Summer Camp 

 Police Department Open House 

 Recreation Department Safety Town 

 Retail Seminars 

 Black Friday Details 

 VFW Christmas Food & Gift Drive 

 Shop With a Cop 

 Prescription Drug Take Back 

 

Education & Prevention Programs 

 “Safety with Strangers” (presented to preschoolers) 

 “Choose Wisely” (presented to 4th graders) 

 “Got Caught” (presented to 5th graders) 

 Safety Bowl for Student Crossing Guards 

 Senior Citizens Scams 

 Personal Safety 

 Retail Liaison Programs 

 Prom and Graduation Safety 

 Drug, Alcohol, and Tobacco Abuse Awareness 

 Police Station Tours 

 Identi-Child Fingerprinting 

 Residential & Business Security Surveys 

 Residential & Business Alarm Awareness 

 VFW Camp Trotter 

 Active Shooter Response  

 Workplace Violence 

 Domestic Violence 

 Identity Theft 

 Internet Safety for Students & Adults 

 Bullying & Cyberbulling 

 

Troy Community Coalition Partnership 

 Elementary and Middle School Prevention Programs 

 “Parents Who Host Lose the Most” 

 Sticker Shock Sales to Minors 

 

 

VFW Christmas Food & Gift Drive 

Shop With a Cop 

Safety Bowl for Student Crossing Guards 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=http%3A%2F%2Ftroycoalition.blogspot.com%2F&ei=wQLIVMeaHY2fyASploD4CA&bvm=bv.84349003,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNF-T6Oc9TtYlUqpWZ-6-Mopu5uitw&ust=1422480445474940


 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 57 

Chaplain Program 

Overview 

 The Police Chaplain Program is consistent with the Department’s philosophy of providing an excellent work         

environment for its employees and comprehensive service to the community 

 Vital component of the Department’s response to employee stress 

 Serve as an important resource to officers, civilian employees, and their families 

 

Duties 

 Provide confidential counseling services to Department personnel and their families 

 Offer comfort and ministerial services to families of deceased members of the Department; conduct and/or   

participate in religious services for a deceased member when requested by the family 

 Visit sick or injured police personnel 

 Attend Department graduations, promotion activities, award ceremonies, dinners, social events, etc., upon request 

 Provide invocations and benedictions at approved Department events 

 Ride along with on-duty police personnel 

 Attend approved Department training, as well as other training approved by the Chief of Police or his designee 

 Provide liaison with other religious leaders in the community 

 Meet with other Police Chaplains in the area and act as a liaison with those departments represented 

 When requested, respond to serious crashes, major incidents, and other crisis situations, including death           

notifications 

 

Members 

 Joseph Casiglia; Troy PD Chaplain since 2000 

 Executive Pastor of Faith Lutheran Church, Troy 

 Attended Walsh College, William Tyndale College, and Concordia Seminary 

 Stephen Norman; Troy PD Chaplain since 02/13/15 

 Pastor at Kensington Church, Troy 

 Attended Taylor University and Fuller Theological Seminary 

 Arnie Sleutelberg; Troy PD Chaplain since 2000 

 Rabbi at Congregation Shir Tikvah, Troy 

 Attended Albion College and Hebrew Union College 

 Jeff Totten; Troy PD Chaplain since 2000 

 Teaching staff member at Woodside Bible Church; Baseball Chapel Leader for Detroit Tigers Baseball Club 

 Attended Bob Jones University and Detroit Baptist Theological Seminary 

 

 

 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 58 

Chaplain Program 

In Memory 

 Chaplain Paul Stover passed away on October 9, 2014.  He had been both a Chaplain and a 

dear friend to many at Troy PD.  He will be missed by all. 

 Chief Mayer spoke at Chaplain Stover’s funeral.  In recognition of his service to the men and 

women of Troy PD, those words are reprinted here. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I first met Paul during the Chaplain background process in 2000.  He was one of our first chaplains and was 

certainly the most involved.  Paul received a Community Service Award in 2006 for his work at our Youth 

Hockey Clinic where we combined fun with drug and safety education.  He received the Chief’s Award for 

Outstanding Accomplishment in 2011 for his dedication to our chaplain program. 

 

But what was not in Chaplain Stover’s file was mention of the countless people that he influenced during his 

time with Troy PD.  Paul had a calming effect that he carried as he would walk about when he would visit 

work stations, roll calls, and trainings.  He would appear in my office door and ask if I was OK.  He knew to 

be around during the hectic times just to be a sounding board. 

 

I remember replying once, when he asked how I was “Just pray for me”.  He replied “I do”.  He prayed for all 

of us.  He knew when an officer needed a listening ear and would offer it.  Several times over the years, I came 

across Chaplain Stover meeting an officer for lunch or coffee. 

 

Paul attended countless calls to assist us with death notifications or to be with families that suffered tragedy.  

One such family wrote in July of 2006 to express their thanks for Paul’s respect, sensitivity, and compassion 

during their grieving over the sudden death of a loved one.  I have spoken with several officers and          

communications staff that remember Chaplain Stover answering the call to come in without complaint. 

 

Paul never complained – he would discuss his trials but would not complain.  He reached all of us with his 

words of encouragement in the “Chaplain’s Corner”. 

 

In preparing for today, I reviewed some of Paul’s writings and I would like to conclude with his words from 

May 27, 2014. 

 

So I would say to you that even though we do not understand many times what people do or why they do 

things or how creation works, at least we can take comfort that the Lord looks down and watches over 

us…. He even “walks through the valley of death with us.”  So friends, when we look at creation what 

do we see and what is it saying to our hearts?  My prayer is, “fear not, for I am with you.” 

 

May God’s holy peace and abiding presence be with us this day.  May God’s peace be yours. 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 59 

Operations Division 

Directed Patrol Unit (DPU) 

 Staffed by one sergeant and five officers; may work in plain clothes or in uniform depending on nature of the 

detail 

 Purpose is to provide a concentrated force of officers to respond to the specific problems occurring within 

Troy, particularly when those problems exhibit a discernible trend or pattern 

 Officers work a revolving schedule depending on these crime patterns 

 Proactive unit striving to address quality of life issues and concerned with public safety  

 

Functions 

 Alcohol sale compliance 

 Tobacco sale compliance 

 Community event details 

 Oakland County Probation home 

visits 

 Narcotics investigations 

 Targeted complaints of illegal activity 

 

Data Driven Approach to Crime and Traffic Safety  (DDACTS) 

 Integrates location and time-based geo-mapping with spatial analysis to identify areas 

that have high incidences of crime and crashes 

 Employs targeted enforcement strategies that establish effective and efficient methods 

for deploying our assets 

 Utilizes highly visible traffic enforcement and saturation patrols in high crime and 

crash locations to deter and detect crime and to reduce crashes and other traffic     

violations 

 Collects and interprets traffic crash information 

 Goal is to increase public safety by reducing the incidence of crime, crashes, and    

traffic violations   

YEAR 

CALLS FOR    

SERVICE     

HANDLED 

FOUND ON  

PATROL        

INCIDENTS 

CITATIONS/ 

WARNINGS  

ISSUED 

ARRESTS   

MADE 

2013 875 360 392 111 

2014 865 552 533 109 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 60 

Operations Division 

Traffic Safety Specialists  

 Troy PD has six officers that are recognized as traffic safety 

specialists, three each assigned to our road patrol day and   

afternoon shifts 

 These officers not only perform all the duties of patrol       

officers, but also those required of traffic safety specialists 

 Forensic mapping 

 Advanced crash reconstruction  

 Occupant kinematics 

 Crime scene photography 

 Motor carrier enforcement 

 Drug recognition 

 Members of the South Oakland County Crash Investigation 

Team (SOCCIT) 

 Certified instructors: 

 Standardized field sobriety tests 

 Firearms qualification 

 Radar and laser operation 

 Traffic safety classes for 52-4 District Court 

 Field Training Officers 

 

Statistics   

 Comprise only 6% of Troy’s police officers 

 Investigated 28% of all traffic crashes 

 Handled 10% of all calls for service 

 Issued 29% of all citations 

 Effected 6.1% of all OWI arrests 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 61 

Operations Division 

Motor Carrier Officers   

 Troy spends over $8,000,000 each year to   

repair and maintain our roads 

 Studies show that 99% of that damage is 

caused by commercial motor vehicles, with 

overweight commercial motor vehicles being 

the major contributor 

 Significant percentages of commercial motor 

vehicles are not maintained as required by law 

or driven by properly trained and licensed  

operators 

 Troy PD has two highly trained, skilled, and 

motivated motor carrier officers (37 officers 

statewide)  

 In 2014, 253 commercial motor vehicle      

citations were issued 

 Majority of violations were for trucks being 

overweight, having unstable loads, possessing 

defective vehicle equipment, or being driven 

by inadequately trained and licensed operators 

 Most violations were issued during the       

reduced-load frost law season when much of 

the road damage occurs 

 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 62 

Operations Division 

South Oakland County Crash Investigation Team  (SOCCIT) 

 Utilizes the principles of effective traffic incident management to thoroughly investigate critical injury and fatal 

traffic crashes 

 Interdepartmental sharing of resources from Bloomfield Township PD, Auburn Hills PD, and Troy PD 

 Goals and objectives: 

 Reduce overtime and maximize the use of on-duty personnel 

 Minimize the time roads are closed following a serious crash 

Statistics 

 SOCCIT was activated 15 times in 2014; six of those incidents occurred in Troy 

 Since its inception in November 2010, SOCCIT has handled 57 critical injury and/or fatal crash investigations 

 

2014 Troy Incident Summary 

 Livernois/Long Lake:  Vehicle crossed the center line and struck a City of Troy snow plow; responsible driver was    

seriously injured 

 Wattles/Anvil:  Due to a medical issue, elderly driver left the roadway and struck a tree; driver and wife seriously injured 

 Livernois/Troy Street:  Vehicle traveling at high rate of speed failed to stop for red traffic signal; responsible driver was 

struck by another vehicle traveling through green traffic signal; at-fault driver died from his injuries 

 Big Beaver/Dequindre:  Vehicle traveling at a high rate of speed failed to stop for a red traffic signal; responsible driver 

was struck by another vehicle traveling through a green traffic signal.; responsible driver died from his injuries   

 Timbercrest:  Elderly pedestrian was struck by a vehicle backing out of a driveway; pedestrian later died as a result of the 

injuries; investigation is on going 

 Maplelawn/Crooks:  A pedestrian was struck in the crosswalk by a bus; pedestrian died at the scene; bus driver was   

arraigned on one charge of “Moving Violation Causing Death” 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 63 

Operations Division 

Police Lobby and Desk   

 Police lobby is open 24 hours a day 

 Desk is staffed by a civilian desk attendant as follows: 

 Monday through Friday            7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.  

 Saturday, Sunday, selected holidays       8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  

 During unstaffed hours, a telephone is available for citizens to call our 

Communications Section and a patrol unit will be dispatched  

 

Civilian Desk Attendants 

 Part-time employees who are retired Troy Police personnel; cannot work 

more than 1,000 hours a year, do not have arrest powers, and are not   

required to do the duties of a sworn Police Officer 

 Required to have a working knowledge of Department general orders, policies and procedures, local ordinances, 

and state and federal laws 

 Must have the ability to utilize the Law Enforcement Information Network system as well as other databases 

 Supervised by the on-duty shift commander and report to a sergeant charged with the administration of the desk 

attendant program 

 Have considerable contact with the public and are often the face of Troy PD 

 Duties include: 

 Greeting visitors and directing them to appropriate Police Department or City offices 

 Responding to requests and providing law enforcement information 

 Preparing incident and administrative reports 

 Preparing crash reports 

 Administering court directed preliminary breath tests  

 Proven to be a valuable force multiplier and a complimentary asset to the functions of police operations 

 Contributes to our overall mission and goals by providing responsive police service to the community 

 

2014 Desk Attendant Statistics 

 Handled 2,141 of the 40,554 total calls for service (over 5%)  

 Wrote 922 of the 33,386 total police reports (over 2.7%) 

 Wrote 998 of the 4,074 total crash reports (over 24%)    

 



 

TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 64 

Oakland County Hazardous  

Materials Response Team  

Overview  

 OCHMRT was formed in January 2009 by merging the North Oakland County Hazmat Team, the 

West Oakland County Hazmat Team, and the Troy Special Response Unit 

 Funded through the Oakland County Fire Mutual Aid Association 

 Established to eliminate duplication of equipment and training. and to save local and regional funds  

 Responsible for hazmat incidents involving City of Troy and 30 other communities in Mutual Aid 

Consortium 

 Over past two years, team has received approximately $500,000 in Federal Homeland Security and State Grant  

Funds, Oakland County Funds, and Mutual Aid Consortium for Equipment and Training Funds (noted below) 

 Team comprised of 28 Firefighters, seven Public Safety Officers, and three Troy Police Officers 

 Several members have received advanced training and are qualified as Hazmat Specialists, participating quarterly in 

proficiency verification program in which they are required to identify unknown samples sent to them by a major 

public health laboratory as a form of quality assurance      

 Troy Police & Fire personnel among the eight who carry this designation 

 

Newly Acquired Equipment 

 Hi Pressure Compressed Gas Containment Vessel HP-CGCV 

 Thermo Raman/FT-IT Chemical Detectors 

 Portable DNA Bio-Detector 

 Two Foam Trailers (one operated by Troy Fire Department) 

 Box Truck with Special Chemical Mitigation/Containment Equipment  and Corrosive Liquid Transfer Pump System 

 

Training 

 Attended over 3,011 hours of Specialized Hazmat/WMD training in 2014  

 Integrated Transportation Systems World Congress Mock Incident at Belle Isle; selected by MDOT to participate 

 Attended/Observed Team Perform Hazmat Operations at a Mock Tanker Rollover 

 

Requests for Assistance 

 Team averages one Hazmat Incident per week 

 Over the past two years, the team has responded to major incidents such as: 

 Tank truck rollovers involved in fuel spills and other toxic chemicals 

 Odor investigations/chemical smells 

 Major fuel spill at local gas station following an accident involving a fuel tanker 

 Natural gas leaks 

 Mercury spills 

 

 



 

 TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 2014                                          PAGE 65 

Volunteer Program 

Since 2010, The Troy Police Department has utilized volunteers to assist in a variety of ways 

 

Citizens on Patrol (COP)  

 Trained to observe and report conditions requiring police services 

 Act as extra “eyes and ears” as they travel around the city looking for suspicious activity 

 In 2014, COP volunteers logged 2,530 hours 

 

Internal 

 Greet citizens as they enter our building and guide them to the proper location 

 Assist the Records Section with filing 

 Provide assistance to the Investigative Section by making follow-up phone calls 

 In 2014, the 15 internal volunteers logged 1,947 hours 

 

Special Events 

 Assist with annual Special Events  

 Safety Bowl for Student Crossing Guards 

 Open House 

 Shop With a Cop 



 

 
                              CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
Date:  March 17, 2015 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
    
Subject: UPDATE – Sale of Surplus City Owned Parcels 
 
 
 
City Council approved the sale of eleven (11) City owned remnant parcels on April 7, 2014.  

The development potential of the parcels fell into two categories, buildable and those whose 
development potential would best be realized if combined with an adjacent property.  

 

5 BUILDABLE PARCELS 

Of the 11 parcels, 5 were deemed buildable parcels and offered for sale to the public. Bid documents 
were upload to MITN.info with a bid deadline date of December 18, 2014.  

Four of the five properties received bids and City Council approved the highest bids at their January 
12, 2015 meeting. Staff has closed on 1 parcel and is in the final closing stages for the other 3 
properties. 

 
6 ASSEMBLAGE PARCELS 
 
Staff sent letters to owners of properties that abut City owned parcels. No response was received 
from abutting property owners to 3 of our parcels. 
 
Of the remaining 3 parcels; we sold one, are waiting for confirmation of fee simple ownership on 
another and are working with interested property owners for the third. 
 
The attached table indicates the status of all eleven parcels. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LF/G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Updale-SaleofSurplusParcels.doc 

1 
 

dicksona
Text Box
P-02c



REPORT: REMNANT PARCEL SALES  

DEVELOPMENT 
POTENTIAL PIN ADDRESS/LOCATION ZONING 

APPRAISED 
AMOUNT 

Highest 
Bid/Sale 
Amount 

 
STATUS 

Buildable 88-20-03-126-006 6972 Donaldson R-1B $55,000  $107,500 Closed 
Deed recorded 

Buildable 88-20-20-226-038 Engineering Field 
Office/Boulan Park 

CF $80,000  $130,000 In closing process 

Buildable 88-20-16-476-027 Livernois & Paragon R-1B $45,000  $65,000 In closing process 

Buildable 88-20-16-476-028 Livernois & Paragon R-1B $45,000  $55,000 In closing process 

Buildable 88-20-24-451-029 Big Beaver, West of 
Waterfall 

R-1E $55,000  No bids 
received 

 

Assemblage 88-20-10-101-018 Old Fire Station 2 O $59,000   Working with adjacent property 
owners 

Assemblage 88-20-28-227-006 2995 Livernois BB $40,000   No interest from adjoining 
property owner 

Assemblage 88-20-22-358-028 Big Beaver & Frankton BB $36,000   Staff is waiting for proof of fee 
ownership from adjacent property 

owner to proceed with sale 
process 

Assemblage 88-20-27-155-013 Hickory & Plum R-1E $55,000   No interest from adjoining 
property owners 

Assemblage 88-20-34-201-003 598 E. Maple IB $6,200  $6,300 Closed  
Deed recorded 

Assemblage 88-20-26-483-053 John R & Maple CB $70,000   No interest from adjacent property 
owner 

     $363,800  
                             


	March 23, 2015 Agenda 
	Cover Memo
	Vision Statement & Goals
	Top 10 Strategies
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION: Rev. David Huseltine - Big Beaver United Methodist Church
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Student Council of Barnard Elementary School
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificate of Appreciation to Troy Athens Student Council for Raising More Than $57,000 During Charity Week for Wish Upon a Teen (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-2 Troy Community Coalition Year in Review (Presented by: Nancy Morrison, Executive Director for Troy Community Coalition)
	C-3 Presentation to Congratulate Rick Greenwell, MSED and Tim Davis, MSEC, Department of Public Works, on Taking First and Second Place in the Annual State Level Meter Madness Competition Sponsored by the American Water Works Association (Presented by...
	C-4 Big Beaver Road – Big Beaver Zoning District (Presented by: Brent Savidant, Planning Director)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Liquor Violation Hearing – H-Mart Troy, LLC d/b/a H-Mart (Presented by: Julie Q. Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney)

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – None
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Historic District Commission, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee

	Suggested Resolution
	Suggested Resolution
	I-3 No Request for Closed Session

	J. CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Special Study Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 9, 2015
	b) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – March 9, 2015

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tree Maintenance Services
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mowing and Landscaping
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing and Distributing of Water/Sewer Bills
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders - Aggregates
	f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Kronos Workforce Management Software

	J-5 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2014
	J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Brook View Site Condominiums – Project No. 07-943.3
	J-7 Request for Authorization to Make an Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Property for the Expansion of Fire Station #4 – Sidwell #88-20-25-352-030
	J-8 Request for Acceptance of Four Warranty Deeds and Six Permanent Easements for Oak Forest Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-11-201-028 & 030

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):  None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	N-1  No Council Referrals

	O. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	O-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	P. REPORTS:
	P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-January 14, 2015
	b) Traffic Committee-Final-January 21, 2015
	c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-February 4, 2015
	d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-February 11, 2015
	e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-February 17, 2015
	f) Planning Commission-Final-February 24, 2015
	g) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-March 4, 2015

	P-2 Department Reports:
	a) Federal Aid Funding for Major Road Projects – Rochester, Barclay to Trinway (Troy) and Dequindre, Long Lake to Auburn (RCOC)
	b) Troy Police Department 2014 Annual Report
	c) Sale of Surplus City Owned Parcels Update

	P-3 Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted
	P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted

	Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session Requested

	S. ADJOURNMENT:




